RICO AUTO INDUSTRIES LIMITED
FINANCIALS OF SUBSIDIARY
COMPANIES FOR THE FY 2017-18
Sl. Name & Address of the Company
No.

CIN/GLN

Holding/
Subsidiary

% of
Shares Held

1.

Rico Investments Limited
38 K.M. Stone, Delhi-Jaipur
Highway, Gurugram-122001,
Haryana

U65923HR2015PLC054211

Subsidiary

96.88%

2.

AAN Engineering Industries Limited
38 K.M. Stone, Delhi-Jaipur
Highway, Gurugram-122001,
Haryana

U28112HR2010PLC039941

Subsidiary

100%

3.

Rico Auto Industries Inc., USA
6338, Sashabaw Road, Clarkston,
Michigan 48346 USA

Foreign Company
Registration No. :
510411449

Subsidiary

100%

4.

Rico Auto Industries (UK) Ltd.
Unit 1, Lewis House, 99 Victoria
Road, London - NW106DJ, UK

Foreign Company
Registration No.: 04975219
(England and Wales)

Subsidiary

100%

5.

Rasa Autocom Limited
38 K.M. Stone, Delhi-Jaipur
Highway, Gurugram-122001,
Haryana

U74120HR2007PLC037192

Step-down
Subsidiary

100%

6.

Rico Aluminium and Ferrous Auto
Components Limited
38 K.M. Stone, Delhi-Jaipur
Highway, Gurugram-122001,
Haryana

U34300HR2008PLC037956

Step-down
Subsidiary

100%

7.

Rico Jinfei Wheels Limited
38 K.M. Stone, Delhi-Jaipur
Highway, Gurugram-122001,
Haryana

U34200HR2007PLC037021

Step-down
Subsidiary

93.49%

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
THE MEMBERS OF
RICO INVESTMENTS LIMITED
Report on the Financial statements
We have audited the accompanying Financial statements of RICO INVESTMENTS LIMITED
(‘the Company’), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2018, the Statement
of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of the
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial statements and for Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance
and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the
Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,2014. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of
the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a
true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.
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Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Financial statements based on our audit
and to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit.
We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards
and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of
the Act and the Rules made there under.
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act and the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement and whether
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained
and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts, the
disclosures in the financial statements and adequacy of the internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exits,
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal
financial controls relevant to the Company’s preparation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s
Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and the Financial statements .
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
A company's internal financial controls over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of
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Financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that:
i.
ii.

iii.

Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management
and directors of the company; and
Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could
have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.
Opinion
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India:
(a) in the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March
31, 2018;
(b) in the case of the Statement of Profit and Loss , of the profit for the year ended on
that date; and
(c) in the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on that
date.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:
a. we have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;
b. in our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as appears from our examination of those books;
c. The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss, and cash flow statement dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account ;
d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014.; and
e. On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2018, and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on March 31, 2018, from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164 (2) of the Act.
f. In our opinion considering nature of business, size of operation and organizational
structure of the entity, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial
controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31st March 2018,
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.; and
g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us:
i.
The Company does not have any pending litigations as on the date of the
financial statements.
ii.
The Company does not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term
contracts.
iii.
There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.
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2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”)
issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section
143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure, a statement on the matters specified in
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.
For Budhraja Adlakha & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Reg. No.: 005154N

Nalin Kumar Budhraja
(Partner)
Memb. No.: 084310

Place: Gurugram
Date: 24th May 2018
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Annexure to the Auditor’s Report
Annexure referred to in paragraph 2 under the heading “Report on other legal and
regulatory requirements” of our report of even date.
RE: RICO INVESTMENTS LIMITED
i)

(a) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of the fixed assets.
(b) The fixed assets have been physically verified by the management during the
year. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.
(c ) As explained to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the
Company, the company does not have any immovable property. Accordingly,
Paragraph 3(i)(c) order is not applicable.

ii)

The company is not having any inventory, hence paragraph 3(ii) of the order is
not applicable.

iii)

The Company has granted loans to two companies covered in the register
maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013.
a) In our opinion, the terms and conditions on which the loans have been
granted are not prejudicial to the interest of the Company
b) The schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been
stipulated, however repayment of loan has not fallen due.
c) There are no overdue amounts in respect of the above loans.

iv)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,

v)

The company has not accepted any deposits.

vi)

As explained to us, maintenance of Cost Records has not been specified by
Central Government.

the Company has complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the
Act, with respect to the loans and investments made.
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vii)

a)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the Company, in our opinion, the Company
is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including Provident Fund,
Employees State Insurance, Income Tax and Service Tax.
According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no
undisputed amounts payable in respect of the above Statutory dues which
were outstanding, as at March 31, 2018 for a period of more than six months,
from the date they became payable.

b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues
of Income tax and Service Tax, which have not been deposited on account of
any dispute.
(viii)

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records
examined by us, the Company has not borrowed money from any Financial
Institution, Bank or Government. It has also not defaulted in repayment of
dues to Debenture holders.

ix)

The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further
public offer (including debt instruments) and nor has raised any Term Loans
during the year under report.

x)

According to the information and explanations given to us, no material fraud
by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has been
noticed or reported during the course of our audit.

xi)

The Company has paid/provided for the managerial remuneration in
accordance with section 197 of the Companies Act 2013.

xii)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
the Company is not a nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the
Order is not applicable.

xiii)

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, transactions with the related
parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Companies Act,
2013 where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed
in notes to accounts in the financial statements as required by the applicable
accounting standards.

xiv)

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly
convertible debentures during the year under audit.
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xv)

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not entered
into non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with them.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

xvi)

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the
Reserve Bank of India Act 1934.
For BUDHRAJA ADLAKHA & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Reg. No.: 005154N

Nalin Kumar Budhraja
(Partner)
Memb. No.: 084310
Place: Gurugram
Date: 24th May 2018
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RICO INVESTMENTS LIMITED
Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2018
31st March 2018
(Rs.)

31st March 2017
(Rs.)

3
4

1,187,000,000
38,603,532
1,225,603,532

937,000,000
25,254,831
962,254,831

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
( a ) Long-Term Borrowings
( b ) Other Long-Term Liabilities
( c ) Long-Term Provisions

5
6
7

264,400
242,950
507,350

250,000,000
172,566
159,555
250,332,121

CURRENT LIABILITIES
( a ) Trade Payables
( b ) Other Current Liabilities
( c ) Short-Term Provisions

8
9
7

306,045
908,971
5,138,421
6,353,437

906,678
1,422,653
5,814,312
8,143,643

1,232,464,319

1,220,730,595

10
11
12
13

653,338
735,030,000
113,886
471,500,000
1,207,297,224

950,733
735,030,000
83,285
464,000,000
1,200,064,018

14
15

8,564,349
16,602,746
25,167,095

3,490,134
17,176,443
20,666,577

1,232,464,319

1,220,730,595

Note No.
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS
( a ) Share Capital
( b ) Reserve & Surplus
(2)

(3)

Total
ASSETS
(1) NON-CURRENT ASSETS
(a) Fixed Assets
(i) Tangible Assets
(b) Non-Current Investments
(c) Deferred Tax Assets (net)
(d) Long-Term Loans & Advances
(2)

CURRENT ASSETS
(a) Cash and Cash Equivalents
(b) Other Current Assets

Total
Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies
See Accompanying Notes Forming Part Of The Financial
Statements

2.1
1-29

As Per Our Report Of Even Date
For Budhraja Adlakha & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 005154N

For And On Behalf Of The Board Of Directors Of
Rico Investments Ltd

Nalin Kumar Budhraja
(Partner)
Membership No. 084310

Om Prakash Aggarwal
Managing Director
Din: 01537211

Arvind Kapur
Director
Din: 00096308

Place : Gurugram
Dated : 24th May 2018

Parveen Garg
Chief Financial Officer

Jagdish Chand Dwivedi
Company Secretary

RICO INVESTMENTS LIMITED
Statement Of Profit And Loss For Year Ended On 31st March, 2018
Note No.

31st March 2018
(Rs.)

31st March 2017
(Rs.)

INCOME
Revenue From Operations

16

49,157,434

48,646,070

TOTAL REVENUE

"A"

49,157,434

48,646,070

Employee Benefit Expenses
Finance Cost
Other expenses
Depreciation

17
18
19
10

3,984,783
22,044,521
4,428,777
297,395

3,355,492
26,217,847
1,615,002
135,038

TOTAL EXPENSES

"B"

30,755,476

31,323,379

Profit / (Loss) before exceptional and extraordinary items and tax
(A -B)

18,401,958

17,322,691

Less: Exceptional items
Profit / (Loss) before extraordinary items and tax
Less: Extraordinary items
Profit / (Loss) before tax
Less: Tax expense / (Income) :(a) Current Tax
Less : MAT Credit Entitlement
Net Current Tax
(b) Deffered Tax
(b) Previous Year Income Tax
Profit/(Loss) for the Year / period

18,401,958
18,401,958

17,322,691
17,322,691

5,130,000
-30,601
-46,142
13,348,701

5,812,590
-23,324
11,533,425

0.11
0.11

0.23
0.23

EXPENSES

Earnings per equity share [nominal value of share Rs. 10
Earnings per share:-

20

(a) Basic
(b) Diluted
Summary Of Significant Accounting Policies

2.1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial
Statements.
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As Per Our Report Of Even Date
For Budhraja Adlakha & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 005154N

For And On Behalf Of The Board Of Directors Of
Rico Investments Ltd

Nalin Kumar Budhraja
(Partner)
Membership No. 084310

Om Prakash Aggarwal
Managing Director
Din: 01537211

Arvind Kapur
Director
Din: 00096308

Place : Gurgaon
Dated : 24th May 2018

Parveen Garg
Chief Financial Officer

Jagdish Chand Dwivedi
Company Secretary

RICO INVESTMENT LIMITED
Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended 31st March, 2018
Particulars

A. Cash Flow From Operating Activities
Net Profit / (Loss) Before Tax and Extra-Ordinary Items
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses
Loss / (Profit) on Sale of Investments (Non Current)
Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes
Adjustments for:
Increase / (Decrease) in Long Term Provisions
Increase / (Decrease) in Other Long Term Liabilities
Increase / (Decrease) in Short Term Provisions
Increase / (Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities
Increase / (Decrease) in Trade Payables
(Increase) / Decrease in Long Term Loans & Advances
(Increase) / Decrease in Other Current Assets
Cash Generated From operations
Income Tax Paid / Refunded
Cash Flow Before Extraordinary Items
Extraordinary Items
Net Cash From Operating Activities (A)

For the period ended
31st March, 2017
Amount in Rs.

18,401,958

17,322,691

297,395
-

83,395
91,834
-5,759,749
-513,682
-600,633
-7,500,000
573,697

B. Cash Flow From Investing Activities
Acquisition of Subsidiaries
Investments in Subsidiaries
Fixed Assets Aquired

-

135,038
-

297,395
18,699,353

-13,625,138
5,074,215
5,074,215
5,074,215

-

Net Cash used in Investing Activities (B)
C. Cash Flow From Financing Activities
Issue Of Equity Capital
Issue Of Preference Capital
Long Term Borrowings

For the year ended
31st March, 2018
Amount in Rs.

64,258
121,412
-11,176,757
-5,589,277
845,732
-1,000,000
517,087

-

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents(A+B+C)
Cash and Cash Equivalents (Opening Balance)
Cash and Cash Equivalents (Closing Balance)

-16,217,545
1,240,184
1,240,184
1,240,184

-662,560
-

-662,560

250,000,000
-250,000,000

Net Cash from Financing Activities (C)

135,038
17,457,729

-662,560

-

-

-

5,074,215

577,624

3,490,134
8,564,349

2,912,510
3,490,134

Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash on Hand
With banksOn Current Accounts
Total cash and cash equivalents (Note 14)

3,505

3,305

8,560,844
8,564,349

3,486,829
3,490,134

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

2.1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements.
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As Per Our Report Of Even Date
For Budhraja Adlakha & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 005154N

For And On Behalf Of The Board Of Directors Of
Rico Investments Ltd

Nalin Kumar Budhraja
(Partner)
Membership No. 084310

Om Prakash Aggarwal
Managing Director
Din: 01537211

Arvind Kapur
Director
Din: 00096308

Place : Gurgaon
Dated : 24th May 2018

Parveen Garg
Chief Financial Officer

Jagdish Chand Dwivedi
Company Secretary

RICO INVESTMENTS LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2018
Note - 1: Corporate Information
RICO INVESTMENTS LIMITED was incorporated on 7th January; 2015.The main object of the Company is
to make strategic investments in the Group Companies of RICO Auto Industries Limited and grant loans to
such Companies. The Company is a Core Investment Company – Non-Banking Financial Company (CICNBFC) as per guidelines issued by The Reserve Bank of India and the investment pattern of the Company
also complies with the requirement to continue to qualify as a CIC-NBFC.
Note - 2: Basis of preparation
The Financial Statements of the company have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles in India (Indian GAAP). The company has prepared these financial statements to
comply in all material respects with the accounting standards notified under section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013, read with rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. The financial statements
have been prepared under the historical cost convention on an accrual basis except in case of assets for
which provision for impairment is made and revaluation is carried out.
Note - 2.1: Summary of significant accounting policies
a. Use of estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Indian GAAP requires the management to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of revenues, expenses,
assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period.
Although these estimates are based on the management's best knowledge of current events and
actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods.
b. Revenue recognition
(A) Interest
Revenue is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and
the rate applicable.
(B) Dividend
Dividend income is accounted for on cash basis, as compared to accrual basis when a right to
receive payment is established.
c. Tangible fixed assets
Tangible Assets are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation. Cost of acquisition is
inclusive of freight, duties, taxes and other incidental expenses.
d.

Depreciation on tangible fixed assets
The company is charging the depreciation on written down value based on useful lives of assets, as
prescribed by Schedule II of the Companies Act 2013. The useful life of assets is given as under:
Fixed Asset
Vehicles

Useful Life of the Tangible Asset
8 Years
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2018
e.

Impairment of Assets
At each balance sheet date, the Company assesses whether there is any indication that an asset may be
impaired. If the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount, an impairment loss is
recognized in the Statement of profit & Loss to the extent the amount exceeds the recoverable
amount.

f.

Investments
Investments are classified as trade when investment is made in the shares or debentures of another
Company for the purpose of promoting the trade or business of the Company. Investments that are
readily realizable and intended to be held for not more than a year from the date on which such
investment is made are classified as current investments. All other investments are classified as longterm investments.
i.
Current investments are carried at lower of cost and fair value determined on an individual
investment basis.
ii.
Long-term investments are carried at cost. However, provision for diminution in value is
made to recognize a decline other than temporary in the value of such investments.
iii.
On disposal of an investment, the difference between its carrying amount and the net
disposal proceeds is charged or credited to the Statement of Profit and Loss.
g. Accounting for taxes on income
Tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax. Current income tax is measured at the amount
expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the Indian Income Tax Act. Deferred
income taxes reflect the Impact of current year timing differences between taxable income and
accounting income for the year and reversal of timing differences of earlier years.
Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) -MAT credit is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent
there is reasonable certainty that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified
period. The Company reviews the said MAT Credit entitlement at each reporting date.
Deferred tax is measured based on the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at
the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that there is reasonable
certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets
can be realized. In situations where the company has unabsorbed depreciation or carry forward tax
losses, all deferred tax assets are recognised only if there is virtual certainty supported by convincing
evidence that they can be realized against future taxable profits.
h. Retirement and Other Employee benefits
I. Short-term employee benefits
The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for
the services rendered by employees is recognized during the period when the employee renders
the service. These benefits include compensated absences such as paid annual leave, Bonus and
performance incentives.
II. Post employment benefit plans
Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes are charged as an expense as they
fall due.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2018
For defined benefit Schemes, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the projected unit
credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at each Balance Sheet date. Actuarial gain
and losses are recognized in full in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the period in which they occur.
Past service cost is recognized immediately to the extent that the benefits are already vested.
The retirement benefit obligation recognized in the Balance Sheet represents the present value of the
defined benefit obligation as adjusted for unrecognized past service cost, and as reduced by the fair
value of scheme assets. Any asset resulting from this calculation is limited to past service cost, plus the
present value of available refunds and reductions in future contributions to the scheme.
i.

Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share
For the purpose of calculating basic earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period
attributable to equity shareholders after deducting any attributable tax thereto for the period is
divided by weighted number of equity shares outstanding during the period.
Diluted earnings per share
For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period
attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during
the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

j.

Provisions
A provision is recognized when an enterprise has a present obligation as a result of past event and it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a
reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are not discounted to their present value and are
determined based on management estimate required to settle the obligation at the Balance Sheet
date. These are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current management
estimates.

k.

Contingent liabilities
A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the
control of the company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in
extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be
measured reliably. The company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in
the financial statements.

l.

Cash Flow
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit / (loss) before extraordinary items
and tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of
past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing
activities of the Company are segregated based on the available information.
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Notes To Financial Statements For Year Ended On 31st March 2018
NOTE - 3
SHARE CAPITAL

31st March 2018
Amount (Rs.)

AUTHORISED
12,00,00,000 Equity shares of Rs 10/- Each
(Previous year 5,00,00,000 Equity shares of Rs 10/- Each)
NIL - Preference Shares of Rs 10/- each)
(Previous year 4,50,00,000 Preference Shares of Rs 10/- each)

31st March 2017
Amount (Rs.)

1,200,000,000

500,000,000

-

Issued, Subscribed & Paid Up
11,87,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each fully Paid up.
(Previous year 4,97,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each fully
Paid up)
NIL - 12% Redeemable Compulsorily Convertible Non Cumulative
Preference Shares (CCNPS)of Rs.10/- each fully paid up.

450,000,000

1,187,000,000

497,000,000

-

(Previous year 4,40,00,000 12% Redeemable Compulsorily
Convertible Non Cumulative Preference Shares (CCNPS)of Rs.10/each fully paid up)
Total issued, subscribed and paid up share capital

440,000,000

1,187,000,000

937,000,000

A. Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period

Nos.
Equity Shares
At the beginning of the period
Issued during the period
Outstanding at the end of the period

Preference Shares
At the beginning of the period
Converted in to Equity during the period
Outstanding at the end of the period

31st March 2018
Amount

49,700,000
69,000,000
118,700,000

Nos.

497,000,000
690,000,000
1,187,000,000

31st March 2018
Amount

44,000,000
44,000,000
-

440,000,000
440,000,000
-

Nos.

31st March 2017
Amount

49,700,000
49,700,000

Nos.

497,000,000
497,000,000

31st March 2017
Amount

44,000,000
44,000,000

440,000,000
440,000,000

B. Terms/rights attached to Equity shares
The Company has only one class of equity shares, having par value of Rs.10/– per share. Each holder of equity share is entitled for one vote per share
and has a right to receive dividend as recommended by the Board of Directors subject to the necessary approval from the shareholders.
In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company after distribution
of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the equity shareholders.
C. Terms/Rights attached to Preference Shares
The CCNPS shareholders do not have any rights except in the matters directly affecting them. The CCNPS are compulsarily convertible within a period
of five years from the date of allotment , at the option of the Board, at par.
D. Shares in the Company held by the Holding Company

Rico Auto Industries Limited, Holding Company
Equity shares of Rs 10/- each fully paid up
12% Redeemable Compulsorily Convertible Non Cumulative
Preference Shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid up.

Nos.

31st March 2018
Amount

115,000,000
-

1,150,000,000
-

Nos.

31st March 2017
Amount

46,000,000
44,000,000

460,000,000
440,000,000

RICO INVESTMENTS LIMITED

Notes To Financial Statements For Year Ended On 31st March 2018
E. Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the
company

Equity Shares of Rs 10 each fully paid up
Rico Auto Industries Limited, (Holding Co.)

Nos.

31st March 2018
% holding in
the class

115,000,000

Nos.

96.88%

31st March 2017
% holding in
the class

46,000,000

92.56%

44,000,000

100.00%

12% Redeemable Compulsorily Convertible Non Cumulative
Preference Shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid up.
Rico Auto Industries Limited, (Holding Co.)

-

NOTE - 4
RESERVES & SURPLUS

31st March 2018
Amount (Rs.)

Surplus / (Deficit) in Statement of Profit and Loss
Opening Balance
Profit / (Loss) for the period/year
Less : Appropriations :
Transfer to Reserve Fund in terms of Section 45-IC of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934
Closing balance (A)

31st March 2017
Amount (Rs.)

18,735,996
13,348,701

9,509,256
11,533,425

-2,669,740
29,414,957

-2,306,685
18,735,996

Reserve Fund :
In terms of Section 45-IC of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934
Opening Balance
Add : Transfer from Surplus

6,518,835
2,669,740

4,212,150
2,306,685

Closing balance (B)

9,188,575

6,518,835

38,603,532

25,254,831

Total (A + B)

In relation to the current year, the Board of directors has proposed a dividend of Rs.2,37,40,000/- (Rs.0.20 per equity share of Rs.10/- each) at their
meeting held on May 24, 2018, CDT on the same amounts to Rs.48,79,827/-. The same has not been given any effect in the current year accounts as
the same is not yet final dividend.
NOTE - 5
LONG TERM BORROWINGS
31st March 2018
31st March 2017
Nos.
Amount Rs.
Nos.
Amount Rs.
Compulsory Converible Debentures (CCD)
10.25% Compulsorily Convertible Debentures of Rs.10/- each
fully paid up.

-

-

-

-

25,000,000

250,000,000

25,000,000

250,000,000

The CCDs are compulsarily convertible within a period of five years from the date of allotment at par.

NOTE - 6
OTHER LONG TERM LIABILITIES
Security Deposits Staff Car Scheme

31st March 2018
Amount (Rs.)

31st March 2017
Amount (Rs.)

264,400

172,566

264,400

172,566

RICO INVESTMENTS LIMITED

Notes To Financial Statements For Year Ended On 31st March 2018
NOTE - 7
PROVISIONS

Provision for Income Tax
Provision for Employee Benefits
Provision for Grautity
Provision for Leave Encashment

NOTE - 8
TRADE PAYABLE
Trade Payable
Due to related parties (Refer Note No. 22 )

NOTE - 9
OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
Providend fund payable
TDS payable
Salary Payable
Audit Fees Payable
Others payable
Interest Payable

31st March 2018
Amount(Rs)
Long Term
Short term
-

5,130,000

126,107
116,843
242,950

523
7,898
5,138,421
31st March 2018
Amount (Rs.)

-

68,746
90,809
159,555

5,809,249

277
4,786
5,814,312
31st March 2017
Amount (Rs.)

184,255
121,790

784,674
122,004

306,045

906,678

31st March 2018
Amount (Rs.)

This space has been left blank intentionally

31st March 2017
Amount(Rs)
Long Term
Short term

31st March 2017
Amount (Rs.)

30,710
308,151
300,235
236,250
33,625
-

29,313
732,812
263,903
236,250
73,731
86,644

908,971

1,422,653
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RICO INVESTMENTS LIMITED

Notes To Financial Statements For Year Ended On 31st March 2018
NOTE - 11
NON CURRENT INVESTMENTS

31st March 2018
Amount (Rs.)

31st March 2017
Amount (Rs.)

Trade Investment (At Cost unless stated otherwise)
Unquoted Equity Instruments
Investments in Susbsidiaries
4,10,00,000 Equity shares of Rs 10/ each,fully paid up,of Rasa
Autocom Ltd

214,600,000

214,600,000

4,60,50,000 Equity shares of Rs 10/- each fully paid up of Rico
Aluminium and Ferrous Auto Components Ltd.

460,030,000

460,030,000

3,55,25,000 Equity shares of Rs 10/- each fully paid up of Rico
Jinfei Wheels Ltd

60,400,000

60,400,000

735,030,000

735,030,000

NOTE - 12
DEFERRED TAX
Depreciation
Provision for Grautity
Provision for Leave Encashment
Preliminary Expenses

31st March 2018
Amount (Rs.)
37,807
34,890
34,369
6,820
113,886

31st March 2017
Amount (Rs.)
18,806
22,060
30,553
11,866
83,285

NOTE - 13
LONG TERM LOANS & ADVANCES
Unsecured, considered good

31st March 2018
Amount (Rs.)

31st March 2017
Amount (Rs.)

(Previous Year 2,50,00,000 Equity shares of Rs 10/ each,fully paid up)

(Previous Year 4,60,50,000 Equity shares of Rs 10/ each,fully paid up)

(Previous Year 3,55,25,000 Equity shares of Rs 10/ each,fully paid up)

Loans and advances to related parties(Refer Note No.22 )

NOTE - 14
CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash on hand
Cheque in Hand
Balances on Current Accounts with Scheduled Banks

NOTE - 15
OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
Loans and advances to employees
Interest Accrued But Not Due
Interest Accrued And Due
Tax Deducted At Source

471,500,000
471,500,000
31st March 2018
Amount (Rs.)
3,505
8,494,006
66,838
8,564,349
31st March 2018
Amount (Rs.)
98,906
10,986,597
5,517,243
16,602,746

464,000,000
464,000,000
31st March 2017
Amount (Rs.)
3,305
55,155
3,431,674
3,490,134
31st March 2017
Amount (Rs.)
1,850,636
8,961,200
6,364,607
17,176,443

RICO INVESTMENTS LIMITED

Notes To Financial Statements For Year Ended On 31st March 2018
NOTE - 16
REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

31st March 2018
Amount (Rs.)

Interest income

49,157,434
49,157,434

NOTE - 17
EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE

48,646,070
48,646,070

31st March 2018
Amount (Rs.)

Salary
Contribution to Provident Fund
Labour & Staff Welfare
Gratuity
Leave Encashment

31st March 2017
Amount (Rs.)

3,608,445
185,582
6,979
75,053
108,724
3,984,783

NOTE - 18
FINANCE COSTS

3,043,888
139,968
14,058
75,212
82,366
3,355,492

31st March 2018
Amount (Rs.)

Interest paid on CCD
Interest Others

NOTE - 19
OTHER EXPENSES
Rent
Legal and Professional
Fees & Taxes
Printing & Stationary
Directors' Sitting Fees
Conveyance & Travelling
Other Expenses
Vehicle running and maintenance expenses
Previous Year Expenses
Payments to the auditors
As auditor :
Audit Fee
Tax Audit Fee
Taxation Matters

31st March 2017
Amount (Rs.)

31st March 2017
Amount (Rs.)

22,044,521
-

25,625,000
592,847

22,044,521

26,217,847

31st March 2018
Amount (Rs.)

31st March 2017
Amount (Rs.)

62,400
448,637
2,628,836
6,888
610,000
66,395
57,121
283,000
-

208,000
40,250
17,250

265,500
4,428,777

71,708
685,658
57,140
5,916
370,000
24,163
63,350
78,317

201,250
40,250
17,250

258,750
1,615,002

RICO INVESTMENTS LIMITED
Notes To Financial Statements For Year Ended On 31st March, 2018
Note - 20: Earning per share (EPS)
Earning Per Share (EPS) computed in accordance with Accounting Standard 20 issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India:31st March, 2018
31st March, 2017
Basic Earning Per share :Net Profit as per Statement of Profit & Loss (Rs.)
13,348,701
11,533,425
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares outstanding
during the year (Nos.)
118,700,000
49,700,000
Basic Earning Per share (Rs.)
0.11
0.23
Diluted Earning Per share :Net Profit as per Statement of Profit & Loss (Rs.)
Add:- Interest on Debentures (Net of Taxes)
Profit for equity shareholders after taking impact of dilution
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares outstanding
during the year (Nos.)
Add :- Weighted Average Number of Convertible Securities
- Convertible Preference Shares
- Convertible Debentures
Number of shares - Diluted (Nos.)
Diluted Earning Per share (Rs.)
Diluted Earning Per share (Rs.)
*(Anti-Dilutive hance can not exceeds basis EPS)
Note - 21: Retirement and Other Employee Benefits

13,348,701
15,970,704
29,319,405

11,533,425
18,564,672
30,098,097

118,700,000

49,700,000

118,700,000
0.25

44,000,000
25,000,000
118,700,000
0.25

0.11

0.23

31st March, 2018
185,102

31st March, 2017
139,588

31st March, 2018
(Rs.)

31st March, 2017
(Rs.)

a) Defined contribution plans
Provident fund and other funds:
Employer’s contribution to provident fund
b) Defined benefit plans
Gratuity Plan:
I (i) Change in Present Value of benefit obligations :
Present value of obligation at the beginning (A)
Current Service Cost (B)
Interest Cost (C )
Actuarial (gain)/ loss (D)
Benefits Paid (E)
Present value of obligations at the end(F=A+B+C+D+E)
(ii) Change in plan assets :
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning (A)
Expected return on plan assets (B)
Employer's Contributions (C )
Benefits Paid (D)
Actuarial Gain (E)
Fair value of plan assets as on at the end (F=A+B+C+D+E)
(iii) Net Liabilities/ (Assets) ( i-ii )

69,023
50,865
5,087
-79
124,896
-

36,969
32,709
2,958
39,545
-43,158
69,023
-

124,896

69,023

50,865
5,087
-79
55,873

32,709
2,958
39,545
75,212

(v) Bifurcation of Projected Benefit Obligation at the end of
year as per Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013
Current Liability (Amount due within one year)
Non-Current Liability (Amount due over one year)

523
124,373

277
68,746

Total Projected Benefit Obligation at the end of year

124,896

69,023

(iv) Net gratuity cost for the year ended:
Current Service Cost (A)
Interest cost (B)
Expected return on plan assets (C )
Actuarial (gain)/Loss recognised in the year (D)
Net gratuity cost (E=A+B+C+D)

Leave Encashment Plan:
31st March, 2018
(Rs.)
II (i) Change in Present Value of benefit obligations :
Present value of obligation at the beginning (A)
Current Service Cost (B)
Interest Cost (C )
Actuarial (gain)/ loss (D)
Benefits Paid (E)
Present value of obligations at the end (F=A+B+C+D+E)

95,595
55,117
7,045
53,750
-108,724
102,783

31st March, 2016
(Rs.)
63,757
45,298
5,101
31,967
-50,528
95,595

RICO INVESTMENTS LIMITED
Notes To Financial Statements For Year Ended On 31st March, 2018
(ii) Change in plan assets :
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning (A)
Expected return on plan assets (B)
Employer's Contributions (C )
Benefits Paid (D)
Actuarial Gain (E)
Fair value of plan assets at the end (F=A+B+C+D+E)

-

-

(iii) Net Liability/(Assets) ( i-ii )

102,783

95,595

(iv) Net Leave Encashment for the year ended :
Current Service Cost (A)
Interest cost (B)
Expected return on plan assets (C )
Actuarial (gain)/Loss recognised in the year (D)
Net Leave Encashment cost (E=A+B+C+D)

55,117
7,045
53,750
115,912

45,298
5,101
31,967
82,366

(v) Bifurcation of PBO at the end of year as per Schedule III
to the Companies Act, 2013
Current Liability (Amount due within one year)
Non-Current Liability (Amount due over one year)
Total PBO at the end of year

7,898
94,885
102,783

4,786
90,809
95,595

Principal Actuarial Assumptions
The Principal assumptions used in determining gratuity and leave encashment for the Company's plans are shown below :

Discount rate
Salary escalation rate
Expected rate of return on plan assets

Gratuity Plan
31st March,
31st March,
2018
2017
(%)
(%)
7.73%
7.37%
5.50%
5.50%
-

Leave Encashment Plan
31st March,
31st March,
2017
2018
(%)
(%)
7.73%
7.37%
5.50%
5.50%
-

Note - 22: Related party disclosures
1.

Related parties where control exists
Names of related parties and related party relationship
Holding Company:

Rico Auto Industries Ltd

Subsidiaries:

Rasa Autocom Ltd
Rico Aluminum & Ferrous Auto Components Ltd
Rico Jinfei Wheels Ltd

Subsidiaries of Holding Co.:

Rico Auto Industries Inc. USA
Rico Auto Industries (UK) Limited, UK
AAN Engineering Industries Limited

Enterprises owned or significantly influenced by Key
Managerial Personnel or their relatives, with whom
transactions have taken place during the year.

Kapbros Engineering Industries ltd
Rico Castings Ltd
Kapsons Associates Investments Private Limited

Key Managerial Personnel

2.

Shri Arvind Kapur
Shri Om Prakash Aggarwal
Shri Jagdish Chand Dwivedi
Shri Parveen Garg

Director
Managing Director
Company Secretary
Chief Financial Officer

Related party transactions
The following table provides the total amount of transactions that have been entered into with related parties for the relevant financial year :
31st March, 2018
31st March, 2017
(Rs.)
(Rs.)

RICO INVESTMENTS LIMITED
Notes To Financial Statements For Year Ended On 31st March, 2018
RICO Auto Industries Ltd, Holding Co.
(i)
Rent Paid
Interest on CCD (net off TDS)
Balance payable
(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

62,400
19,840,069
115,654

71,708
23,062,500
122,004

Rico Castings Limited
Interest received (net off TDS)
Loan Recoverable

21,640,500
229,000,000

21,640,501
229,000,000

Kapsons Associates Investments Private Limited
Loan given
Interest received (net off TDS)
Loan Recoverable

7,500,000
22,601,190
242,500,000

1,000,000
22,140,962
235,000,000

12
2,420,655
1,557,150

12
2,294,178
889,659

Remuneration paid to key management personnel
Shri O P Aggarwal (MD)
Shri Jagdish Chand Dwivedi (CS)
Shri Parveen Garg (CFO)

31st March, 2017
(Rs.)

31st March, 2018
(Rs.)
Note - 23: Detail of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the

Nil

Nil
31st March, 2017
(Rs.)

31st March, 2018
(Rs.)
Note - 24: Capital and other commitments

Nil

Nil
31st March, 2017
(Rs.)

31st March, 2018
(Rs.)
Note - 25: Contingent Liabilities

Nil

Nil
31st March, 2017
(Rs.)

31st March, 2018
(Rs.)
Note - 26: Earning in Foreign Currency

Nil

Nil
31st March, 2017
(Rs.)

31st March, 2018
(Rs.)
Note - 27: Expenditure in Foreign Currency

Nil

Nil
31st March, 2017
(Rs.)

31st March, 2018
(Rs.)
Note - 28: Net Dividend remitted in Foreign Currency

Nil

Nil

Note - 29: Previous year figures
Previous year figures are regrouped/reclaassified wherever necessary.
As Per Our Report Of Even Date
For Budhraja Adlakha & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 005154N

For And On Behalf Of The Board Of Directors Of
Rico Investments Ltd

Nalin Kumar Budhraja
(Partner)
Membership No. 084310

Om Prakash Aggarwal
Managing Director
Din: 01537211

Arvind Kapur
Director
Din: 00096308

Place : Gurgaon
Dated : 24th May 2018

Parveen Garg
Chief Financial Officer

Jagdish Chand Dwivedi
Company Secretary

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To,
The Members of AAN Engineering Industries Limited
Report on the Ind AS Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of AAN Engineering Industries Limited (‘the
Company’), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018, the Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in
Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements
that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other
comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended, and other accounting principles generally accepted in India.
This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation
of Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Ind AS financial statements based on our audit.
While conducting the audit, we have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and
auditing standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under and the Order issued under section 143(11) of
the Act.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section
143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements are
free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal
financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation and fair presentation of the Ind AS financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
the accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
Ind AS financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and
give a true and fair view in conformity with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March, 2018, and its Losses, total
comprehensive income, its cash flows Statement and the changes in equity for the year ended on
that date.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub‐section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in
the Annexure A, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to
the extent applicable.
2. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:
a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit.
b. In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as appears from our examination of those books.
c. The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, the
Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.
e. On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2018 and
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March
31, 2018 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.
f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in
“Annexure B”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting.
g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014 as amended, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:
i.

The Company does not have any pending litigations as on the date of the Ind AS
financial statements.

ii.

The Company does not have any material foreseeable losses on long‐term contracts.

iii.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For Budhraja Adlakha & Co.
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No.: 005154N)

Nalin Kumar Budhraja
Partner
Membership No.: 084310
Place: Gurugram
Date: 24th May 2018

Annexure referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements” of our report of even date.
Annexure –A to the Auditor’s Report
Re: AAN Engineering Industries Limited
i)

(a) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of the property, plant and equipment.
(b) All fixed assets have not been physically verified by the management during the year,
however, there is a regular program of verification once in every three years, which, in
our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of
its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.
(c)

ii)

As explained to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the Company,
the company does not have any immovable property. Accordingly, Paragraph 3(i) (c)
order is not applicable.
As explained to us, the inventories were physically verified during the year by the
management at reasonable intervals other than for stock lying with third parties and
goods in transit. Confirmations were obtained for stock lying with third parties and
subsequent receipts were verified in case of good in transit in most of the cases. The
discrepancies noted on physical verification of inventories as compared to book records
were not material and have been properly dealt with in the books of account.

iii)

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability
partnerships and other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of
the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, paragraphs 3(iii)(a) (b) and (c) of the Order are
not applicable.

iv)

As the Company has not made any Investments nor any Loans are given, Para 3(iv) of
the Order is not applicable.

v)

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
accepted any deposit during the year in terms of the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or
any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

vi)

The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government
under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 for the business activities carried out
by the Company.

vii)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, in our opinion, the Company is regular in
depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues including Income
tax and other material statutory dues, as applicable, with appropriate authorities.
a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed Statutory dues,
including Income‐tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty, Goods and
Services Tax, Value Added Tax, Works Contract Tax, cess and other material
statutory dues applicable to it to the appropriate authorities.
b) There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund,
Employees’ State Insurance, Income‐tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Customs Duty,
Excise Duty, Goods and Services Tax, Value Added Tax, cess and other material
statutory dues in arrears as at 31 March, 2018 for a period of more than six months
from the date they became payable.

(viii)

According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not
defaulted in the repayment of loans or borrowings from any financial institution,
banks, government or due to the debenture holders during the year.

ix)

The company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public
offers (including debt instruments). As per the information and explanations given to
us, the company has applied the term loans, raised for the purpose for which they
were obtained.

x)

According to the information and explanations given to us, no material fraud by the
Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported
during the year.

xi)

According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not paid any managerial
remuneration during the year. Hence, clause (xi) of the Order is not applicable.

xii)

The Company is not a nidhi company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the
Order is not applicable.

xiii)

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are
in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 where applicable
and details of such transactions have been disclosed in notes to accounts (Refer Note
29) in the Ind AS financial statements.

xiv)

During the year the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures and hence reporting
under clause (xiv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xv)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during
the year the Company has not entered into any non‐cash transactions with its
directors or directors of its holding, subsidiary or associate company or persons
connected with them and hence Clause 3(xv) of the order is not applicable.

xvi)

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45‐IA of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934.

For Budhraja Adlakha & Co.
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No.: 005154N)

Nalin Kumar Budhraja
Partner
Membership No.: 084310
Place: Gurugram
Date: 24th May 2018

Annexure ‐ B to the Auditors’ Report
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub‐section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of AAN Engineering
Industries Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on “the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India”. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.
Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards
on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of
Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in
all material respects.
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit
of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that;
(1) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and
(3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
Opinion
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at 31st March 2018, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Budhraja Adlakha & Co.
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No.: 005154N)

Nalin Kumar Budhraja
Partner
Membership No.: 084310
Place: Gurugram
Date: 24th May 2018
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
To
Board of Directors
Rico Auto Industries, Inc.
Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Rico Auto Industries, Inc. (a Delaware
Corporation) (the ‘Company’), which comprise the balance sheets as of March 31, 2018 and 2017, and the
related statement of comprehensive income, changes in stockholders’ equity, cash flows for the years then
ended and the related notes to the financial statements.
Management’s responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor’s responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our
audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of
the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.
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Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Rico Auto Industries, Inc. as of March 31, 2018 and 2017 and the results of its operations and its
cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

New Delhi, India
May

24,
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RICO AUTO INDUSTRIES, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT
March 31, 2018 and 2017

NOTE A – BACKGROUND INFORMATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES
1. Organization and nature of operations
Rico Auto Industries, Inc. (“the Company”) was incorporated under the laws of state of Delaware, United
States of America. The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Rico Auto Industries, Limited, an Indian
public limited company. The Company has commenced business operations from January 2002 and is engaged
in the business of marketing and selling auto components manufactured by Rico Auto Industries Limited.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies
A summary of the significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of the accompanying financial
statements is as follows:
2.1 Overall considerations
The accompanying financial statement have been prepared under the historical cost convention on the accrual
basis of accounting in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America (“US GAAP”) to reflect the financial position, results of operations, statement of changes in
stockholders’ equity and cash flows of the Company.
2.2 Use of estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with US GAAP requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities as of the date of the financial statements and the reported amount of revenues and expenses
during the reporting period. There are no significant estimates and assumptions are made by the company in
preparing these financial statements. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as management becomes
aware of changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates.
2.3 Cash and cash equivalents
The Company considers all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of ninety days or less to be cash
equivalents. Cash consist of cash in current accounts maintained with banks.
2.4 Inventories
Inventories consist of finished goods, goods in transit, packaging materials and components, and are stated at
the lower of cost or market value. The cost is determined using first-in-first-out method and includes purchase
price and attributable direct costs, less trade discounts and provisions.

9

RICO AUTO INDUSTRIES, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT
March 31, 2018 and 2017
NOTE A (Continued)

2.5 Revenue Recognition
Revenue from sales of auto components is recognized when the significant risks and rewards in respect of
ownership of products are transferred to the customer at the time of receipt of products by the customer and
when the following criteria are met:
•
•
•
•

Delivery has occurred
Persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists;
The price to the buyer is fixed and determinable; and
Collectability of the sales price is reasonably assured.

Provisions for sales discounts and other rebates and damaged product returns are established as a reduction of
product sales revenues.
2.6

Cost of revenues

The Company’s cost of revenues, primarily consist of the cost of purchase of auto components and other
direct material costs.
2.7 Leases
Leases, where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the leased
term are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in the statement
of comprehensive income on a straight line basis, over the lease term, as per ASC 840 “Leases”.
2.8 Income taxes
The provision for current income tax expense is estimated in accordance with the relevant regulations
applicable to the Company. The Company accounts for deferred income taxes under the full liability method,
in accordance with the provisions of ASC 740 “Income Taxes”. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are
recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between carrying amounts of existing
assets and liabilities in the financial statements and their respective tax basis. Deferred income tax assets and
liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates for respective tax jurisdictions as on the date of the financial
statements. The effect on deferred income tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in the
statement of operations in the period of change. Based on management’s judgment, the measurement of
deferred income tax assets is reduced, if necessary, by a valuation allowance for any tax benefits where it is
more likely than not, that some portion or all of such benefits will not be realized.
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RICO AUTO INDUSTRIES, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT
March 31, 2018 and 2017
NOTE A (Continued)
2.9 Property and equipment
Property and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is calculated
on a straight-line method over the estimated useful life of the respective assets.
2.10 Provisions and Contingencies
Provisions
Provisions are recognized when present obligations as a result of a past event will probably lead to an outflow
of economic resources from the Company and amounts can be estimated reliably. Timing or amount of the
outflow may still be uncertain. A present obligation arises from the presence of a legal or constructive
commitment that has resulted from past events. Provisions are not recognized for future operating losses.
Provisions are measured at the estimated expenditure required to settle the present obligation, based on the
most reliable evidence available at the reporting date, including the risks and uncertainties associated with the
present obligation. Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be
required in settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. Provisions are not
discounted unless the timing of the related cash flows is fixed or reliably determinable. Any reimbursement
that the Company can be virtually certain to collect from a third party with respect to the obligation is
recognized as a separate asset. However, this asset may not exceed the amount of the related provision. All
provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.
Contingent liabilities
In those cases where the possible outflow of economic resources as a result of present obligations is
considered improbable or where the amount of the obligation cannot be determined reliably, no liability is
recognized.
Contingent assets
Possible inflows of economic benefits to the Company that do not yet meet the recognition criteria of an asset
are considered contingent assets.
2.11 Employee compensation
Short term employee benefits
Short term employee benefits mainly comprise of employee costs such as salaries, bonuses, and other
allowances.
Post-employment benefits
The Company does not provide any post-employment benefits.
2.12 Reclassifications
Certain reclassifications have been made to the financial information of the comparative period to conform to
the classification and presentation of the current period. These reclassifications had no effect on reported
earnings.
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RICO AUTO INDUSTRIES, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT
March 31, 2018 and 2017

NOTE B - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents consist of the following:
As at
As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Balances with banks
in current accounts
Total

$24,077
$24,077

$44,256
$44,256

NOTE C – INVENTORIES
Inventories comprise of the following:
As at
March 31, 2018
$2,184,427
$3,427,644
$5,612,071

Finished goods in transit
Finished goods – imported
Total

As at
March 31, 2017
$2,429,440
$2,953,343
$5,382,783

NOTE D – ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
Accounts receivable that management has the intent and ability to hold for the foreseeable future, or until
maturity or payoff, are reported in the balance sheets at outstanding amount less any charge-offs and the
allowance for doubtful accounts. The Company charges-off uncollectible receivables when the likelihood of
collection is remote. Generally, the Company considers receivables past due 30 days subsequent to the billing
date; however, the Company may extend credit terms up to 60 days. The Company performs ongoing credit
evaluations of its customers, and generally extends credit without requiring collateral. Credit is extended based
on prior experience with a customer and evaluation of customer’s financial condition. The Company maintains
an allowance for doubtful accounts based on management’s expectations of future losses, which is determined
based on historical experience and current economic environment. Losses have historically been within
management’s expectations. Accounts receivables are charged to bad debt expense when they are deemed
uncollectible based upon management’s periodic review of the accounts.
The analysis of accounts receivable is as follows:
As at
As at
March 31, 2018
March 31, 2017
Accounts receivables
Total

$4,916,395
$4,916,395
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$4,232,409
$4,232,409

RICO AUTO INDUSTRIES, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT
March 31, 2018 and 2017

NOTE E – OTHER ASSETS
Other assets comprise of the following:

Prepaid income taxes
Prepaid expenses
Advance to related party
Custom duty refundable
Security deposit
Other current assets
Other non-current assets

As at
March 31, 2018

As at
March 31, 2017

$136,995
$7,269
$390,000
$84,555
$950
$619,769
$482,774
$136,995

$173,400
$8,161
$181,561
$8,161
$173,400

NOTE F – PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (NET)
Property and equipment comprises of the following:
As at
March 31, 2018
Computer
Gross block
Add: Addition
Less: Deletion
Less: Accumulated depreciation
Total

$2,449
$1,563
($190)
($2,536)
$1,286
$277

Depreciation charged during the year

As at
March 31, 2017
$2,449
($2,259)
$190
$64

NOTE G – ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER LIABILITIES
Other liabilities comprise of the following:
As at
As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
$232,680
$290,000
$20,096
$17,338
$252,776
$307,338

Advance from customers
Other expenses payable
Total

$252,776
-

Current
Non-current
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$307,338
-

RICO AUTO INDUSTRIES, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT
March 31, 2018 and 2017

NOTE H – FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The carrying amounts of cash equivalents, other assets and accrued expenses and liabilities because of the
short-term maturities approximate their fair value.

NOTE I – FINANCIALS INSTRUMENTS AND CONCENTRATION OF RISK
Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk consist principally
of accounts receivables. By their nature, all such financial instruments involve risk including the credit risk of
non-performance by counter parties. The Company monitors the credit worthiness of its customers to which
it grants credit terms in the normal course of the business. Two Customers account for more than 90% of the
total revenues and 91% of the total receivables of the Company. (Previous year 80% and 75% respectively).
Significant portion of the purchases made by the Company for the year ended March 31, 2018 and 2017 were
from Rico Auto Industries Limited, which accounted for 99.7% of the accounts payable.
NOTE J – INCOME TAXES
Income taxes comprise of the following:
Year Ended
March 31, 2018
Income tax expense
Federal tax
S State tax
Excess provision of previous year
Deferred income tax expense
Current year (Refer Note J.1)
Total tax expense

Year Ended
March 31, 2017

$141,609
$25,805
-

$122,758
$23,046
($8,033)

$5,956
$173,370

$2,458
$140,229

The reported amount of income tax expense recognized in the statement of comprehensive income does not
differ from the amount that would result from applying the domestic federal statutory rates to pre-tax income
from operations. There are no unrecognized tax positions as of March 31, 2018 and March 31, 2017.
Note J.1 Deferred Tax
Deferred income taxes result from significant temporary differences between income from financial reporting
purposes and taxable income. Deferred income tax components are as follows:
Year Ended
March 31, 2018

Year Ended
March 31, 2017

Deferred tax liability

Capitalization of certain expenses in inventory cost
14

$17,076

$11,120

RICO AUTO INDUSTRIES, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT
March 31, 2018 and 2017
$17,076

$11,120

NOTE K – STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Voting
Each holder of common stock is entitled to one vote in respect of each share held by him in the records of the
Company for all matters submitted to a vote.
Liquidation
In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of common stock shall be entitled to receive all of the
remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts, if any. Such amounts will be in
proportion to the number of equity shares held by the stockholders.
NOTE L – CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
The Company is subject to legal proceedings and claims, which may arise in the ordinary course of business. In
the opinion of the management, these actions are not expected to have a material effect on the results of
operations of the financial position of the Company.
NOTE M - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
A. Name and nature of related parties
Name of related party
Rico Auto Industries Limited
Rico Auto UK Limited

Nature of relationship
Holding Company
Fellow Subsidiary

B. The following is a summary of related party transactions during the year:
I. Purchase of auto components
Rico Auto UK Limited
Rico Auto Industries Limited (Including finished goods in transit )
II.

$20,903 (Previous year $NIL)
$ 20,061,910 (Previous year $22,383,838)

Balances outstanding at year end:

Accounts payable
Rico Auto UK Limited
Rico Auto Industries Limited(including goods in
transit)

$20,903 (Previous
year $ NIL)
$6,994,955 (Previous year
$6,029,195)

Advances given
Rico Auto Industries Limited
$390,000(Previous year $NIL)
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RICO AUTO INDUSTRIES, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT
March 31, 2018 and 2017

NOTE N – EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Employees of Rico Auto Industries, Inc. receive benefits under social security schemes, which is a defined
contribution plan based on specified percentage of employee’s salary. The amount contributed $10,003 and
$9,860 to various social security schemes that have been recognized as an expense in the Statement of
comprehensive income for the year ended March 31, 2018 and 2017 respectively.
Also, the expense have been grouped with selling expense on the basis of function amounting to $125,003
(previous year $124,860).
NOTE O – AUTHORISATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018 were approved by the Board of directors on May
24, 2018.
NOTE P – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
The Company has evaluated all events subsequent to the balance sheet date of March 31, 2018, through May
24, 2018, which is the date these financial statements were issued, and have determined that there are no
subsequent events that require disclosure under FASB ASC 855, ‘Subsequent Events’.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Director
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Rico Auto Industries Inc., USA
Profit & Loss Account as on 31/03/2018

Particulars

@ 64.46
Period Ended Dec
@31,
66.97
2016 - INR
Period Ended
Period Ended
Period Ended
Period Ended
Mar 31, 2017 - Mar 31, 2017 Schedule Mar 31, 2018 - Mar 31, 2018 US$
INR
US$
INR
No.
Provisional
Provisional
Audited
Audited

INCOME
Sales - Components
Sales - Scrap
Sales - Tooling & Other Income

12

21817573

1406369454

22049931

1476787494

9729

627133

626635

41968715

21827302

1406996586

22676566

1518756209

21370748
5421
0

1377566968
349459
0

22293962
6109
0

1493131426
409154
0

21376169

1377916427

22300071

1493540581

451132
277
450855
2.07%
167414
5956
0
277485
0

29080159
17856
29062303
2.07%
10791592
383924
0
17886788
0

376495
64
376431
1.66%
140229
0
0
236202
0

25215628
4286
25211342
1.66%
9391795
0
0
15819547
0

277485
1.27%

17886788
1.27%

236202
1.04%

15819547
1.04%

277485

17886788

236202

15819547

277485

17886788

174918

10702031

EXPENDITURE
Manufacturing & Other Expenses
Financial Charges
Miscellaneous Expenditure written off

13
14

Profit before Depreciation
Depreciation
Profit After Depreciation
Provision for Income Tax
Provision for Deferred Tax
Reversal of Deffered Tax Assets
Profit After Tax
Less : Previous Year Income tax paid
Amount Available for Appropriations
%
APPROPRIATIONS
Balance carried over to Balance Sheet

Rico Auto Industries Inc.,USA
Schedule of Profit & Loss Account as on 31/03/2018
@ 64.46
Period Ended Period Ended Mar
Mar 31, 2018 31, 2018 - INR
US$
Provisional
Provisional

Particulars
Schedule 12 - Sales & other Income
Sales - Components
Sales - Tooling
Sales - Other Income
i
Schedule 13 - Manufacturing & Other Expenses
Cost of Sales
Purchases of Raw Materials
Add : Opening Finished Goods
Less : Closing Finished Goods
Net Raw Materials consumed
Components (USA)
Purchase Tooling ( Rico India )
Balance Written Off
Job Work Charges
Consumables
Packing Materials
Warehousing Expenses
Administrative Expenses
Inspection & Rework Expenses
Testing Expenses
Audit Fees
Legal & Professional
Fees & Taxes
Rent
Insurance (Warehouse & Worker Policy)
Bond service & premium
Administration Expenses

b

g

f

General Expenses
Travelling Expenses
Printing & Stationary
Telephone Expenses
Postage & Courier
General Expenses + Short & Excess

Selling Expenses
Sales Promotion
Freight Charges
Freight Charges
Clearing & Forwarding
Income Tax Refund 31.03.18
Salaries (Jeffrey Thielen )
Provi. For Uncollectible D/D

Schedule 14 - Financial Charges
Bank Interest - JPMorgan
Bank Charges

2,18,17,573
9,729
2,18,27,302

1,40,63,69,454
6,27,133
1,40,69,96,586

2,20,49,931
6,20,090
6,545
2,26,76,566

1,47,67,87,494
4,15,30,342
4,38,373
1,51,87,56,209

2,00,61,910
29,53,343
21,84,427
2,08,30,826

1,27,09,90,627
19,24,69,366
12,06,96,608
1,34,27,63,385

2,18,45,795
22,67,403
29,53,343
2,11,59,854

1,46,15,87,335
14,68,07,070
19,12,19,511
1,41,71,74,894

55,444
191
2,39,618
2,11,26,078

35,73,910
12,289
1,54,45,842
1,36,17,95,427

5,92,187
67,594
256
2,56,233
2,20,76,124

3,96,61,547
45,27,099
17,156
1,71,61,097
1,47,85,41,793

(3,001)
10,307
45,139
1,365
11,400
11,012
550
12,000
88,772

(1,93,437)
6,64,393
29,09,665
87,974
7,34,849
7,09,849
35,453
7,73,525
57,22,271

(2,414)
4,681
42,278
1,035
11,850
6,449
550
14,035
78,464

(1,61,683)
3,13,509
28,31,545
69,352
7,93,650
4,31,920
36,836
9,39,990
52,55,118

5,384
6,785
618
15,687
28,473

3,47,053
4,37,343
39,804
10,11,211
18,35,412

2,954
7,132
439
57
10,581

1,97,846
4,77,658
29,372
3,815
7,08,691

-

Income Tax paid

h

@ 66.9747
Period Ended
Period Ended
Mar 31, 2017 - Mar 31, 2017 US$
INR
Audited
Audited

-

-

-

2,268
153
1,25,003
1,27,425

1,46,214
9,887
80,57,758
82,13,858

3,373
560
1,24,860
1,28,792

2,25,876
37,521
83,62,428
86,25,824

2,13,70,748

1,37,75,66,968

2,22,93,962

1,49,31,31,426

211
5,210

13,620
3,35,839

1,625
4,485

1,08,806
3,00,348

5,421

3,49,459

6,109

4,09,154

Rico Auto Industries Inc.,USA
Balance Sheet as on 31/03/2018
@ 64.46
Schedul As at Mar 31, Period Ended
e No.
2018 - US$ Mar 31, 2018 US$
Provisional
Provisional

Particulars

@ 66.9747
As at March
As at March
31, 2017 - US$ 31, 2017 - INR
Audited

Audited

SOURCES OF FUNDS
SHAREHOLDER'S FUNDS
Share Capital
Exchange Equilisation Reserve
Reserves & Surplus
Loan Funds

1

25000
3544059
0

1216850
17343532
214035189
0

2
3

3266574
0

1216850
15753636
196148386
0

3569059

232595570

3291574

213118871

4

3822
2536
1286

249052
165271
83781

2449
2259
190

158562
146263
12299

INVESTMENTS

5

0

0

0

0

CURRENT ASSETS, LOANS & ADVANCES
Inventories
Account Receivables
Cash & Bank Balances
Loans & Advances

6
7
8
9

Less : Current Liabilities & Provisions

10

5612071
5306398
24077
229769
11172315
7604542

365738680
345817981
1569051
14974065
728099777
495587987

5382783
4232409
44256
181561
9841010
6549625

348517991
274034955
2865424
11755494
637173864
424067291

3567774

232511790

3291384

213106573

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

3569059

232595570

3291574

213118871

TOTAL

25000

APPLICATION OF FUNDS
FIXED ASSETS
Gross Block
Less : Depreciation
Net Block

Net Current Assets
Deffered Tax Assets
MISCELLANEOUS EXPENDITURE
(to the extent not written off or adjusted)
TOTAL

11

Rico Auto Industries Inc., USA
Schedule of Balance Sheet as on 31/03/2018
@ 64.46
Period Ended
Mar 31, 2018 US$
Provisional
Provisional

As at Mar 31,
2018 - US$
Particulars

Schedule 1 - Share Capital
AUTHORISED
2500 Equity Shares US$ 10 Par
ISSUED , SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP
2500 Equity Shares US$ 10 Par
'(Previous Period 2500 Equity Shares US$ 10 Par)
Exchange Fluctuation

Schedule 2 - Reserves & Schedules
SURPLUS
As per Last Balance Sheet
Add : Transferred from Profit & Loss Account

Schedule 3- Loan Funds

Schedule 4- Fixed Assets

Schedule 5- Investments

Schedule 6- Inventories
(As valued and certified by the Management)
Goods in Transit
Finished Goods
Packing Materials

Schedule 7 - Sundry Debtors
(Unsecured considered good)
Advance to Vendors
Other Debts
Less : Provision for Uncollectibles

d

Schedule 8 - Cash and bank Balances
Balances with scheduled banks
In current accounts

Schedule 9 - Loans and Advances
(Unsecured considered good)
Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value
to be received
Security Deposit Refundable
Custom Duty Refundable
Advance Tax (Non Current Assets)

e
j

@ 66.9747
As at March 31, As at March 31,
2017 - US$
2017 - INR
Audited

Audited

25000

1182250

25000

1182250

25000

1216850

25000

1216850

25000

1216850

25000

1216850

3266574

196148401

3030372

180328839

277485
3544059

17886788
214035189

236202
3266574

15819547
196148386

0

0.00

0

0

0

0

0

0

3822

249052

2449

158562

3822

249052

2449

149503

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

3427644
2184427
0

223379564
142359116
0

2429440
2953343
0

157298480
191219511
0

5612071

365738680

5382783

348517991

390000
4916398
0

25416300
320401681
0

4232409
0

0
274034955
0

5306398

345817981

4232409

274034955

24077
24077

1569051
1569051

44256
44256

2865424
2865424

7269
950
84555
136995

473723.99
61912
5510466
8927964

8161
0

528399
0

173400

11227095

229769

14974065

181561

11755494

7167275
232680
20096
17076
167414

467091318
15163756
1309682
1112843
10910389

6085365
0
307336
11120
145805

394007903
0
19898997
719984
9440407

7604542

495587987

6549625

424067291

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Schedule 10 - Current Liabilities and Provisions
Sundry Creditors - Trade
Advance from Customer
Expenses Payable
Deferred Tax Liability
Income Tax Provision- for the year till date

Schedule 11 - Miscellaneous Expenditure
(to the extent not written off or adjusted)

c
a

Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Members of Rasa Autocom Limited
Report on the Financial Statements
1. We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Rasa Autocom Limited (‘the Company’), which
comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year
then ended and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
2. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies
Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs (financial position), profit or loss (financial performance including other
comprehensive income), cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’)
specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.
Auditor’s Responsibility
3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.
4. We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters
which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made
thereunder.

Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Rasa Autocom Limited, on the
financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018 (Cont’d)
5. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of
the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether these financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
6. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial controls relevant to the Company’s
preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
7. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on these financial statements.
Opinion
8. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give
a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India including Ind
AS specified under Section 133 of the Act, of the state of affairs (financial position) of the Company as at
March 31, 2018, and its profit (financial performance including other comprehensive income), its cash flows
and the changes in Equity for the year ended on that date.
Other Matter
9. The Company had prepared separate sets of statutory financial statements for the year ended March 31,
2017 and March 31, 2016 in accordance with Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the
Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as amended) on which we issued auditor’s
reports to the shareholders of the Company dated May 25, 2017 and May 18, 2016. These financial
statements have been adjusted for the differences in the accounting principles adopted by the Company on
transition to Ind AS, which have also been audited by us. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this
matter.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
10. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (‘the Order’) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the Annexure A, a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.
11. Further to our comments in Annexure A, as required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:
a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;
b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
it appears from our examination of those books;

Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Rasa Autocom Limited, on the
financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018 (Cont’d)
c) the financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account;
d) in our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with Ind AS specified under Section 133 of
the Act;
e) on the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record by the Board
of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2018 from being appointed as a
Director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act;
f) we have also audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting (IFCoFR) of the Company
as on March 31, 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the
year ended on that date and our report dated May 23, 2018 as per Annexure B expressed an unqualified
opinion; and
g) with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:
i.

the Company does not have any pending litigation which would impact its financial position;

ii.

the Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses;

iii.

there were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company; and

iv.

the disclosure requirements relating to holdings as well as dealings in specified bank notes were
applicable for the period from November 8, 2016 to December 30, 2016 which are not relevant to
these financial statements. Hence, reporting under this clause is not applicable.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

Ashish Gupta
Partner
Membership No.: 504662
Place: Gurugram
Date: May 23, 2018

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Rasa Autcom
Limited, on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018
Annexure A
Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view on the financial
statements of the Company and taking into consideration the information and explanations given to us and
the books of account and other records examined by us in the normal course of audit, and to the best of
our knowledge and belief, we report that:
(i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of fixed assets.
(b) All fixed assets have not been physically verified by the management during the year, however,
there is a regular program of verification once in every three years, which, in ou r opinion, is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.
(c) The title deeds of all the immovable properties (which are included under the head ‘Property,
plant and equipment’) are held in the name of the Company.
(ii)

In our opinion, the management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable
intervals during the year and no material discrepancies between physical inventory and book
records were noticed on physical verification.

(iii)

The Company has not granted any loan, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships (LLPs) or other parties covered in the register maintained under section
189 of the Act. Accordingly, the provision of clause(iii)(a), 3(iii)(b) and 3(iii)(c) of the order
are not applicable.

(iv)

In our opinion, the Company has not entered into any transaction covered under section 185 and
186 of the Act. Accordingly, the provision of clause 3(iv) of the order are not applicable.

(v)

In our opinion, the Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73
to 76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended).
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable.

(vi)

The Central Government has not specified maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1)
of Section 148 of the Act, in respect of Company’s products. Accordingly, the provisions of
clause 3(vi) of the Order are not applicable.

(vii)(a) Undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax,
sales-tax, goods and service tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax,
cess and other material statutory dues, as applicable, have generally been regularly deposited
to the appropriate authorities, though there has been a slight delay in a few cases. Further, no
undisputed amounts payable in respect thereof were outstanding at the year-end for a period
of more than six months from the date they became payable.
(b) There are no dues in respect of income-tax, sales-tax, goods and service tax, service-tax, duty
of customs, duty of excise and value added tax that have not been deposited with the
appropriate authorities on account of any dispute.
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(viii)

The Company has no loans or borrowings payable to a financial institution or a bank or
government and no dues payable to debenture-holders during the year. Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3(viii) of the Order are not applicable.

(ix)

The Company did not raise moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including
debt instruments) and did not have any term loans outstanding during the year. Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3(ix) of the Order are not applicable.

(x)

No fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or
reported during the period covered by our audit.

(xi)

Managerial remuneration has been paid and provided by the Company in accordance with the
requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 197 of the Act read with Schedule V to
the Act.

(xii)

In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, provisions of clause 3(xii) of
the Order are not applicable.

(xiii)

In our opinion all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188
of Act, where applicable, and the requisite details have been disclosed in the financial statements
etc., as required by the applicable Ind AS.

(xiv)

During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or fully or partly convertible debentures.

(xv)

Based on management representation, the Company has not entered into any non-cash
transactions with the directors or persons connected with them covered under Section 192 of the
Act.

(xvi)

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 001076N/N500013
Ashish Gupta
Partner
Membership No.: 504662
Place: Gurugram
Date: May 23, 2018

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Rasa Autocom
Limited on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018
Annexure B
Independent Auditor’s Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section
3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)
1. In conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of Rasa Autocom Limited (‘the Company’) as at
and for the year ended March 31, 2018, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial
reporting (‘IFCoFR’) of the Company as at that date.
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
2. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly
and efficient conduct of the Company’s business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Act.
Auditor’s Responsibility
3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's IFCoFR based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the ICAI and deemed to be prescribed
under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of IFCoFR, and the Guidance Note
issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
IFCoFR were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.
4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the IFCoFR
and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of IFCoFR includes obtaining an understanding of IFCoFR,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.
5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s IFCoFR.
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
6. A company's IFCoFR is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company's IFCoFR include those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
7. Because of the inherent limitations of IFCoFR, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the IFCoFR to future periods are subject to the risk that
the IFCoFR may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
Opinion
8. In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting and such controls were operating effectively as at March 31, 2018, based on internal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by ICAI.
For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 001076N/N500013
Ashish Gupta
Partner
Membership No.: 504662
Place: Gurugram
Date: May 23, 2018

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To,
The Members of Rico Aluminium and Ferrous Auto Components Limited
Report on the Ind AS Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Rico Aluminium and Ferrous Auto
Components Limited (‘the Company’), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018, the
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow Statement and
the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.
Management’s Responsibility for the Ind AS Financial Statements
The Company’s management is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS Financial Statements that give a
true and fair view of the Financial Position, Financial Performance including Other Comprehensive
Income, Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity of the Company in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
specified under section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended.
This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial control that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation
of the Ind AS Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Ind AS financial statements based on our audit.
While conducting the audit, we have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and
auditing standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under and the Order issued under section 143(11) of
the Act.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section
143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements are
free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the Ind AS Financial Statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS Financial Statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal
financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the Ind AS Financial Statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the Financial Statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Ind AS Financial Statements.
Opinion
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Ind AS Financial Statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and
give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of
the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2018, its Profit (including Other Comprehensive
Income), its Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended on that date.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in
the Annexure A, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to
the extent applicable.
2. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:
a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit.
b. In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as appears from our examination of those books.
c. The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the
Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS Financial Statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.
e. On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2018 and
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March
31, 2018 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.
f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in
“Annexure B”.
g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014 as amended, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:
i.

The Company does not have any pending litigations as on the date of the Ind AS
financial statements which have impact on its financial statement.

ii.

The Company does not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts.

iii.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For Budhraja Adlakha & Co.
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No.: 005154N)

Place: New Delhi
Date: 23rd May 2018

CA Rahool Adlakha
Partner
Membership No.: 083788

Annexure referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements” of our report of even date.
Annexure –A to the Auditor’s Report
Re: Rico Aluminium and Ferrous Auto Components Limited
i)

(a) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of the property, plant and equipment.
(b) All fixed assets have not been physically verified by the management during the year,
however, there is a regular program of verification once in every three years, which, in
our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of
its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.
(c)

ii)

As explained to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the Company,
the company does not have any immovable property. Accordingly, Paragraph 3(i) (c)
order is not applicable.
As explained to us, the inventories were physically verified during the year by the
management at reasonable intervals other than for stock lying with third parties.
Confirmations were obtained for stock lying with third parties. The discrepancies noted
on physical verification of inventories as compared to book records were not material
and have been properly dealt with in the books of account.

iii)

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited liability
partnerships and other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of
the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, paragraphs 3(iii)(a) (b) and (c) of the Order are
not applicable.

iv)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act, with
respect to the loans and investments made.

v)

The company has not accepted any deposits.

vi)

We have broadly reviewed the records maintained by the Company pursuant to the
rules prescribed by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under
section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and we are of the opinion that prima facie
the prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained. We have,
however, not made a detailed examination of the records with a view to determine
whether they are accurate or complete.

vii)

a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, in our opinion, the Company is regular in
depositing with the appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues including
provident fund, ESI, Income tax, Sales Tax, GST, Service Tax, Custom duty, excise, VAT,
Cess and other material statutory dues, as applicable to it.
b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no undisputed
amounts payable in respect of provident fund, ESI, Income tax, Sales Tax, GST, Service
Tax, Custom duty, excise, VAT, Cess which were outstanding, as at March 31, 2018 for
a period of more than six months, from the date they became payable.
c) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of
provident fund, ESI, Income tax, Sales Tax, GST, Service Tax, Custom duty, excise, VAT,
Cess which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

(viii)

According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not
defaulted in the repayment of loans or borrowings from any financial institution,
banks, government or due to the debenture holders during the year.

ix)

The company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public
offers (including debt instruments). As per the information and explanations given to
us, the company has applied the term loans, raised for the purpose for which they
were obtained.

x)

According to the information and explanations given to us, no material fraud by the
Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported
during the year.

xi)

According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has paid/provided for the
managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisites approvals mandated by
the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013.

xii)

The Company is not a nidhi company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the
Order is not applicable.

xiii)

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are
in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 where applicable
and details of such transactions have been disclosed in notes to accounts as required
by the applicable accounting standards.

xiv)

During the year the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures and hence reporting
under clause (xiv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

xv)

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into noncash transactions with the Directors or persons connected with them. Accordingly,
paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

xvi)

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934.

For Budhraja Adlakha & Co.
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No.: 005154N)

CA Rahool Adlakha
Partner
Membership No.: 083788
Place: New Delhi
Date: 23th May 2018

Annexure - B to the Auditors’ Report
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Rico Aluminium and
Ferrous Auto Components Limited (“the Company”) as of 31st March 2018 in conjunction with our
audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on “the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India”. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.
Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards
on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of
Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
over financial reporting were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in
all material respects.
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit
of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that;
(1) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
(2) Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and
(3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
Opinion
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at 31st March 2018, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India.
For Budhraja Adlakha & Co.
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No.: 005154N)

Place: New Delhi
Date: 23rd May 2018

CA Rahool Adlakha
Partner
Membership No.: 083788

Rico Aluminium and Ferrous Auto Components Limited
[Rupees in Lakhs]

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018
Particulars
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipments
Capital work-in-progress
Intangible assets
Financial Assets
- Loans
Other non-current assets
Total non-current assets
Current assets
Inventories
Financial Assets
- Investments
- Trade receivables
- Cash and Bank balance
- Loans
- Other financial assets
Current tax assets (net)
Other current assets

Notes No.

As at March
31,2018
4,582.91
2.32
39.78

4,260.78
121.59
39.78

2,752.92
877.45
39.78

8
14

1,325.05
65.79
6,015.85

1,304.63
14.17
5,740.95

1,304.45
22.42
4,997.02

9

2,021.72

1,713.94

2,057.09

7
10
11
8
12
13
14

1,689.60
33.52
46.79
46.37
152.14
292.84

411.74
24.76
0.11
1,038.78
40.61
104.61
1,063.05

379.66
547.32
0.31
28.52
0.67
1,187.01

4,282.98

4,397.60

4,200.58

10,298.83

10,138.55

9,197.60

15
16

4,605.00
142.94
4,747.94

4,605.00
135.19
4,740.19

4,605.00
76.99
4,681.99

17
18
19
20
21

750.00
14.52
760.94
16.61
1,542.07

12.35
721.83
68.44
802.62

28.97
14.01
605.99
46.97
695.94

17
22
18
19
23
21

280.97
2,439.40
331.05
128.09
829.31
4,008.82

3,812.71
48.99
141.75
592.29
4,595.74

2,884.16
172.47
174.72
15.34
572.98
3,819.67

10,298.83

10,138.55

9,197.60

Total Assets

Non-current liabilities
Financial Liabilities
-Borrowings
-Other financial liabilities
Provisions
Deferred tax liabilities (net)
Other non-current liabilities
Total non-current liabilities
Current liabilities
Financial Liabilities
- Borrowings
- Trade Payables
- Other financial liabilities
Provisions
Current tax liabilities (net)
Other current liabilities
Total current liabilities
Total Liabilities

The accompanying notes (1 to 46) are forming part of these financial statements
In terms of our report attached
For Budhraja Adlakha & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No :005154N

Rahool Adlakha
Partner
Membership No. - 083788
Place : Gurugram
Date : May 23, 2018

As at April
1,2016

5
5
6

Total current assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity Share Capital
Other Equity

As at March 31,2017

(0.01)

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Rajiv Kumar Miglani
Director
DIN-06873155

Satish Sekhri
Director
DIN-00211478

Mukesh Goyal
Chief Financial Officer

Akash Goyal
Company Secretary

Rico Aluminium and Ferrous Auto Components Limited
Statement of profit & Loss for the year ended March 31, 2018

[Rupees in Lakhs]

Particulars

Notes No.

INCOME
Revenue from Operations (Gross)
Other Income
Total Income
EXPENSES
Cost of Material Consumed
Changes in Inventories of finished goods & work-in-progress
Excise duty on sale of goods
Employee benefits expenses
Finance costs
Depreciation and amortisation expenses
Other expenses
Total expenses

24,640.43
228.70
24,869.13

27,296.60
325.64
27,622.24

26
27

8,732.66
(6.58)
707.14
3,629.00
63.71
682.35
11,071.24
24,879.52

9,898.72
53.29
2,744.20
3,423.92
12.65
517.68
10,766.83
27,417.29

(10.39)
63.31
(73.70)

204.95
70.05
134.90

(60.98)
(12.72)

9.15
(9.15)
44.85
90.05

29.62
(9.15)
20.47

(46.08)
14.24
(31.84)

7.75

58.21

(0.03)
(0.03)

0.20
0.20

32

33

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:Re-measurement gains (losses) on defined benefit plans
Income tax benefit
Net other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or loss
Total Comprehensive income for the year, net of tax
Earnings per equity share (Nominal value of Rs. 10/each)
Basic
Diluted

For the Year ended
March 31, 2017

24
25

28
29
30
31

Profit/(loss) before exceptional items and tax
Exceptional Items
Profit/(loss) before tax
Tax expense
Current Tax
MAT Credit entitlement
Deferred tax charges
Profit/(loss) for the year from continuing operations

For the Year ended
March 31, 2018

34

The accompanying notes (1 to 46) are forming part of these financial statements

In terms of our report attached
For Budhraja Adlakha & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No :005154N
Rahool Adlakha
Partner
Membership No. - 083788

Place : Gurugram
Date : May 23, 2018

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Rajiv Kumar Miglani
Director
DIN-06873155

Satish Sekhri
Director
DIN-00211478

Mukesh Goyal
Chief Financial Officer

Akash Goyal
Company Secretary

Rico Aluminium and Ferrous Auto Components Limited
Cash flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2018

[Rupees in Lakhs]
For the year ended
March 31, 2018

Particulars
Cash Flow From Operating Activities
Profit before tax
Extraordinary Items
Adjustments for :
Depreciation and amortisation expenses
Finance Costs
Interest Income
Re-measurement loss/(gain) on defined benefit plans
Net loss/(gain) on sale/discarding of property, plant and equipment
Net gain on sale of investments in debt mutual funds
Fair valuation gain on investment in debt mutual funds
Operating profit before working capital changes
Adjustments for:
- (Increase)/decrease in loans (non-current)
- (Increase)/decrease in other non-current assets
- (Increase)/decrease in inventories
- (Increase)/decrease in trade receivables
- (Increase)/decrease in loans (current)
- (Increase)/decrease in other financial assets (current)
- (Increase)/decrease in other current assets
- Increase/(decrease) in other financial liabilities (Non-current)
- Increase/(decrease) in non-current provisions
- Increase/(decrease) in trade payables
- Increase/(decrease) in other financial liabilities (current)
- Increase/(decrease) in current provisions
- Increase/(decrease) in other current liabilities
Cash Generated From operations
Income tax paid (net)
Cash Generated From operations before extraordinary Items
Extraordinary Items
Net Cash from/(used in) Operating Activities (A)
Cash Flow From Investing Activities
Payments for purchase of property, plant and equipment and capital work in progress
Payments for purchase of intangible assets
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from sale of debt mutual funds
Interest received
Dividend Received
Net Cash from/(used in) Investing Activities (B)

(73.70)
63.31

134.90
70.05

682.35
63.71
(165.85)
29.62
(20.47)
(0.46)
578.51

517.68
12.65
(190.87)
(46.08)
(57.52)
(32.08)
408.73

(20.42)
(51.62)
(307.78)
(1,664.84)
991.99
(5.76)
722.68
2.17
39.11
(1,373.31)
282.06
(13.66)
237.02
(1,162.36)
(1,162.36)
(63.31)
(647.16)

(0.18)
8.25
343.15
522.56
(1,010.26)
(39.94)
20.77
(1.67)
115.84
928.55
(123.48)
(32.97)
19.31
749.93
(25.89)
724.04
(70.05)
1,062.72

(1,214.60)
349.86
412.20
165.85
(286.69)

(1,308.83)
96.66
190.87
(1,021.30)

750.00
280.97
(63.71)
967.26

(28.97)
(12.65)
(41.62)

33.41
0.11
33.52

(0.20)
0.31
0.11

0.31

0.11

33.21
33.52

0.11

Cash Flow From Financing Activities
Proceeds from long term borrowings
Proceeds from Short term borrowings
Repayment of long term borrowings
Finance cost paid
Net Cash from/(used in) Financing Activities (C)
Net increase/(decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C)
Add: Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash on Hand
With banks On Current Accounts & cheque in hand
Total cash and cash equivalents (Refer Note No.-11 )

In terms of our report attached
For Budhraja Adlakha & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No :005154N
Rahool Adlakha
Partner
Membership No. - 083788

Place : Gurugram
Date : May 23, 2018

For the year ended
March 31, 2017

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Rajiv Kumar Miglani
Director
DIN-06873155

Satish Sekhri
Director
DIN-00211478

Mukesh Goyal
Chief Financial Officer

Akash Goyal
Company Secretary

Rico Aluminium and Ferrous Auto Components Limited
Statement of Changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2018

[Rupees in Lakhs]

a. Equity Share Capital

Amount

Balance at April 1, 2016
Changes in equity share capital during the year
Balance at 31st March, 2017
Changes in equity share capital during the year
Balance at 31st March, 2018

4,605.00
4,605.00
4,605.00

b. Other Equity
Reserve & Surplus
Retained
Earnings

General
Reserve
Balance at April 1, 2016
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax
Total comprehensive income for the year
Payment of Dividend
Tax on Dividend
Balance at March 31, 2017
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax
Total comprehensive income for the year
Payment of Dividend
Tax on Dividend
Balance at March 31, 2018

Items of other comprehensive income

0
-

Debt instrument through
other comprehensive
income

76.99
90.05
(31.84)
135.19
135.19
(12.72)
20.47
142.94
142.94

-

The accompanying notes (1 to 46) are forming part of these financial statements

In terms of our report attached

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For Budhraja Adlakha & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No :005154N

Rahool Adlakha
Partner
Membership No. - 083788

Place : Gurugram

Date : May 23, 2018

Rajiv Kumar Miglani

Satish Sekhri

Director
DIN-06873155

Director
DIN-00211478

Mukesh Goyal
Chief Financial Officer

Company Secretary

Akash Goyal

Total
0
76.99
90.05
(31.84)
135.19
135.19
(12.72)
20.47
142.94
142.94

Rico Aluminium And Ferrous Auto Components Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018
1

Corporate Information
TH

The Company was incorporated with Registrar of Companies, NCT of Delhi & Haryana vide CIN : U34300HR2008PLC037956 dated 27 May 2008 , by
the name of RAA Autocom Limited and has changed its name to Rico Aluminium and Ferrous Auto Components Limited on February 23, 2015 in the
Financial Year 2014-15.
The Company has purchased a Ferrous Undertaking situated at Gurugram and Manesar and Non-Ferrous Undertaking, situated at Sanand Gujarat
from its Ultimate Holding Company Rico Auto Industries Limited, in March 2015 on a going concern basis.
The principal Activities of the Company is manufaturing of ferrous and non-ferrous auto components and other related services.
2

Standards and interpretations issued but not effective and yet to be applied by the Company

Summarized in the paragraphs below are standards, interpretations or amendments that have been issued prior to the date of approval of these
financial statements and will be applicable for transactions in the Company but are not yet effective. These have not been considered in the
preparation of the financial statements of the Company.
Management anticipates that all of these pronouncements will be adopted by the Company in the accounting period beginning after the effective
date of each of the pronouncements. Information on the new standards, interpretations and amendments that are expected to be relevant to the
Company’s financial statements is provided below.
Ind AS 115 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”
In March 2018, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued the Companies (Ind AS) Amendment Rules, 2018, notifying Ind AS 115 “Revenue from
Contracts with Customers”. This standard is in accordance with the IFRS 15 issued by International Accounting Standards Board (IASB). The
amendments are applicable to the Company from 1 April 2018.
This standard replaces Ind AS 11 Construction Contracts and Ind AS 18 Revenue. It sets out the requirements for recognizing revenue that apply to
contracts with customers, except for those covered by standards on leases, insurance contracts and financial instruments.
The new standard establishes a control-based revenue recognition model and provides additional guidance in many areas not covered in detail
under existing Ind AS, including how to account for arrangements with multiple performance obligations, variable pricing, customer refund rights,
supplier repurchase options, and other common complexities. The Standard establishes below five step criteria for recognising revenue:
- Identify the contract(s) with a customer;
- Identify the performance obligations;
- Determine the transaction price;
- Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations;
- Recognise revenue when or as an entity satisfies performance obligation.
This standard is effective for reporting periods beginning on or after April 1, 2018 with early adoption permitted. It applies to new contracts created
on or after the effective date and to the existing contracts that are not yet complete as of the effective date.
Amendment to Ind AS 40:
As per the amendment, an entity shall transfer a property to, or from, investment property when, and only when, there is a change in use. A change
in use occurs when the property meets, or ceases to meet, the definition of investment property and there is evidence of the change in use. In
isolation, a change in management’s intentions for the use of a property does not provide evidence of a change in use.
When an entity decides to dispose of an investment property without development, it continues to treat the property as an investment property
until it is derecognised (eliminated from the balance sheet) and does not reclassify it as inventory. Similarly, if an entity begins to redevelop an
existing investment property for continued future use as investment property, the property remains an investment property and is not reclassified
as owner-occupied property during the redevelopment.
Insertion of Appendix B to Ind AS 21:
This Appendix applies to a foreign currency transaction (or part of it) when an entity recognises a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability
arising from the payment or receipt of advance consideration before the entity recognises the related asset, expense or income (or part of it).
This Appendix does not apply when an entity measures the related asset, expense or income on initial recognition:
a. income taxes; or
b. insurance contracts (including reinsurance contracts) that it issues or reinsurance contracts that it holds.
Management is currently evaluating the impact that this new standard will have on its financial statements.This standard is effective for reporting
periods beginning on or after April 1, 2018 with early adoption permitted. It applies to new contracts created on or after the effective date and to
the existing contracts that are not yet complete as of the effective date.

Rico Aluminium And Ferrous Auto Components Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018
3
Basis of preparation and presentation
3.1 Statement of compliance
The financial statements have been prepared as a going concern in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Section
133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards ) Rules,2015 and other relevant provisions of the
Act.
Upto the year ended 31st March, 2017, the Company prepared the financial statements in accordance with the requirements of previous GAAP,
which includes standards notified under the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 and other relevant provisions of the Act. These are the
Company's first Ind AS financial statements. The date of transition to the Ind AS is 1st April, 2016. Refer to note no 44 for the details of first-time
adoption exemptions availed by the Company.
3.2 Accounting Convention & Operating cycles
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments that are measured at fair values at
the end of each reporting period,as explained in the accounting policies below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.
The principal accounting policies are set out below :
Based on the nature of products/ activities of the Company and the normal time between acquisition of assets and their realization in cash or cash
equivalents, the Company has determined its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of classification of its assets and liabilities as current and
non-current.
3.3

Going concern

The financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis under the historical cost convention on accrual basis except for certain financial
assets and financial liabilities (instruments) that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period.
3.4 Use of estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of accounting policies and the reported amount of assets, liabilities, income, expenses and disclosures of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of these financial statements and the reported amount of revenues and expenses for the years presented. Actual results may
differ from the estimates.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed at each balance sheet date. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimates are revised and future periods affected.
The following are the areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgments that the management has made in the process of applying the
Company’s accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:
3.4.a Recognition of deferred tax assets
The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognised is based on an assessment of the probability that future taxable income will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences and tax loss carry-forward can be utilised. In addition, significant judgement is required in
assessing the impact of any legal or economic limits or uncertainties in various tax jurisdictions.
3.4.b Useful lives of depreciable assets
Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of depreciable assets at each reporting date, based on the expected utility of the assets.
Uncertainties in these estimates relate to technological obsolescence that may change the utility of certain software and IT equipment.
3.4.c Inventories
Management estimates the net realisable values of inventories, taking into account the most reliable evidence available at each reporting date. The
future realisation of these inventories may be affected by future technology or other market-driven changes that may reduce future selling prices.
3.4.d Defined benefit obligation (DBO)
Management’s estimate of the DBO is based on a number of critical underlying assumptions such as standard rates of inflation, mortality, discount
rate and anticipation of future salary increases. Variation in these assumptions may significantly impact the DBO amount and the annual defined
benefit expenses.
3.4.e Fair value measurement
Management uses valuation techniques to determine the fair value of financial instruments (where active market quotes are not available) and nonfinancial assets. This involves developing estimates and assumptions consistent with how market participants would price the instrument.
Management bases its assumptions on observable data as far as possible but this is not always available. In that case management uses the best
information available. Estimated fair values may vary from the actual prices that would be achieved in an arm’s length transaction at the reporting
date.

Rico Aluminium And Ferrous Auto Components Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018
3.4.f Evaluation of indicators for impairment of assets
The evaluation of applicability of indicators of impairment of assets requires assessment of several external and internal factors which could result in
deterioration of recoverable amount of the assets.
3.4.g Contingent liabilities
The Company is the subject of legal proceedings and tax issues covering a range of matters, which are pending in various jurisdictions. Due to the
uncertainty inherent in such matters, it is difficult to predict the final outcome of such matters. The cases and claims against the Company often
raise difficult and complex factual and legal issues, which are subject to many uncertainties, including but not limited to the facts and circumstances
of each particular case and claim, the jurisdiction and the differences in applicable law. In the normal course of business management consults with
legal counsel and certain other experts on matters related to litigation and taxes. The Company accrues a liability when it is determined that an
adverse outcome is probable and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated.
4
4.1

Significant Accounting Policies
Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for rebates and other similar allowances.
4.1.a Sale of Goods
Sale of goods are accounted on transfer of significant risks and rewards incident to ownership and when no significant uncertainty exists regarding
realisation of the sale consideration. Sales are recorded net of sales returns, rebates, trade discounts and price differences.
4.1.b Sale of Services
Income from services are accounted over the period of rendering of services and which comprising technical & support services as per terms of the
agreement.
4.1.c Interest & Dividend Income
Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of
income can be measured reliably. Interest income is recognised using effective interest rate (EIR) method.
Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholder's right to receive payment has been established.
4.1.d Rental Income
Rental income arising from assets given under operating leases is recognised over the lease term for which the asset is given on rent as per the rent
agreement and is shown in other income under revenue in the statement of profit and loss.
4.2

Foreign currencies transactions:

The functional currency of the Company is Indian Rupees which represents the currency of the primary economic environment in which it operates.
In preparing the financial statements of the Company, transactions in currencies other than the company’s functional currency (foreign currencies)
are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated. Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise.
4.3 Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
All other borrowing costs are recognised in the Statement of profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.
4.4 Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.
4.4.a Current tax
The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from 'profit before tax' as reported in the statement of profit
and loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Company's current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Rico Aluminium And Ferrous Auto Components Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018
4.4.b Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profits. Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and incurred tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered
Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset
realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. The measurement of
deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
4.4.c Current and Deferred tax for the year
Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case, the income taxes are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
4.5

Property, plant and equipment and capital wok in progress

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Cost includes all expenses, direct and
indirect, specifically attributable to its acquisition and bringing it to its working condition for its intended use. Incidental expenditure pending
allocation and attributable to the acquisition of fixed assets is allocated/capitalised with the related fixed assets. Subsequent expenditure is
capitalised to the asset’s carrying amount only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the
Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed when incurred.
Capital work-in-progress represents assets under construction and is carried at cost.
Transition to Ind AS
On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its property, plant and equipment recognised as at April
1, 2016 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of the property, plant and equipment.
Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value
Depreciation on building and plant and machinery is provided on the straight-line method, computed on the basis of useful life, on a pro-rata basis
from the date the asset is ready to put to use, subject to transitional provisions of Schedule II.However, for certain categories of plant and machinery
depreciation is provided using straight line method over a period of 20 years based on the technical estimate and history of usage.
Depreciation on other property, plant and equipment (except Dies & Moulds) is provided on written-down method on a pro-rata basis from the date
in which each asset is ready to put to use to allocate their cost, net of their residual values, over their estimated useful lives as per prescribed
Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013.
Depreciation on dies and moulds is provided based on actual no of shot ascertained on a technical estimate by the management.
Estimated useful life of assets are as follows which is based on technical evaluation of the useful lives of the assets:
Particulars
Plant & Machinery *
Dies & Moulds
Furniture & Fixture
Office equipments
Computer & servers
Vehicles

Estimated useful life
20 Years
Actual shots
10 Years
5 Years
3 - 8 Years
8 Years

Stores & Spares

2-5 years, when put to use.

[* Based on technical evaluation, the management belives that the useful lives as given above best represent the period over which the management
expects to use theses assets. Hence, the useful lives for theses assets is different from the useful lives as prescribed under part C of schedule II of the
companies Act , 2013]
Gains and losses on disposal are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are credited/debited to profit or loss.
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4.6 Other intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Initial recognition of intangible assets is carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses, if any.
Intangible assets are being amortized on Straight Line value method over the estimated useful economic life of 5 years, except goodwill (which is not
required to be amortised as per Ind AS 109).
Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized.
Transition to Ind AS
On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of its intangible assets recognised as at April 1, 2016 measured
as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of these intangible assets.
4.7 Impairment of tangible and intangible assets
At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether there is
any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
4.8 Inventories
Inventories are valued as follows:
4.8.a Raw materials, stores and spares
Lower of cost or net realisable value. However, materials and other items held for use in the production of inventories are not written down below
cost if the finished products in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost. Cost is determined on a weighted average
basis.
Stores and spares having useful life of more than twelve months are capitalised under “Property, plant and equipment” and are depreciated
prospectively over their remaining useful lives in accordance with Ind AS 16.
4.8.b Work in progress
Work in progress is valued at lower of cost or net realisable value. Cost includes direct materials and labour and a proportion of manufacturing
overheads based on the normal operating capacity and actual stage of production.
4.8.c Finished Goods
Finished goods are valued at lower of cost or net realisable value. Cost includes direct materials and labour and a proportion of manufacturing
overheads based on the normal operating capacity.
Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion to make the sale.
4.9 Employee Benefits
Employee benefits include salaries, wages, provident fund, gratuity, leave encashment towards un-availed leave, compensated absences and other
terminal benefits.
4.9.a Short-term obligations
Liabilities for wages and salaries including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled within the operating cycle after the end of the
period in which the employees render the related services are recognised in the period in which the related services are rendered and are measured
at the undiscounted amount expected to be paid.
4.9.b Other Long-term employee benefit obligations
Compensated absences
Long term employee benefits such as compensated absences and long service awards are charged to statement of profit and loss on the basis of an
actuarial valuation carried out by an independent actuary as at the year-end. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in full in the statement of
profit and loss during the year in which they occur.
4.9.c Post-employment obligations
Defined benefit plans
Liability for defined benefit plans i.e. gratuity is determined based on the actuarial valuation carried out by an independent actuary as at the yearend. As these liabilities are relatively long term in nature, the actuarial assumptions take in account the requirements of the relevant Ind AS coupled
with a long term view of the underlying variables / trends, wherever required.
Service cost and net interest cost on the defined benefit liabilities/assets are recognized in the statement of profit and loss as employee benefit
expense. Gains and losses on remeasurement of defined benefits liabilities arising from changes in actuarial assumptions and experience
adjustments are recognised in the other comprehensive income and are included in retained earnings in the balance sheet.
Defined Contribution plans
The Company has defined contribution plans under which the company pays fixed contribution into fund established under the Employee's State
Insurance Act, 1948 and Employee Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provision Act, respectively. The contributions recognised in respect of defined
contribution plans are charged to the statement of profit and loss every year. The company has no further payment obligations both legal &
Constructive, once the contributions have been paid.
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4.9.d Termination benefits
A liability for the termination benefit is recognised at the earlier of when the Company can no longer withdraw the offer of the termination benefit.
4.10 Financial Instruments
Financial instruments are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument and are measured initially
at fair value adjusted for transaction costs, except for those carried at fair value through profit or loss which are measured initially at fair value.
If the Company determines that the fair value at initial recognition differs from the transaction price, the Company accounts for that instrument at
that date as follows:
a) at the measurement basis mentioned above if that fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset or liability
(i.e. a Level 1 input) or based on a valuation technique that uses only data from observable markets. The Company recognises the difference
between the fair value at initial recognition and the transaction price as a gain or loss.
b) in all other cases, at the measurement basis mentioned above, adjusted to defer the difference between the fair value at initial recognition and
the transaction price. After initial recognition, the Company recognises that deferred difference as a gain or loss only to the extent that it arises from
a change in a factor (including time) that market participants would take into account when pricing the asset or liability.
Subsequent measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities is described below.
Classification and subsequent measurement
4.10.A Financial Assets
i) Financial assets at amortised cost – the financial instrument is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:
- The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and
- Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal
amount outstanding.
After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method.
ii) Financial assets at fair value
Investments in equity instruments other than above – All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments
which are held for trading are generally classified as at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL). For all other equity instruments, the Company
decides to classify the same either as at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) or fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL). The
Company makes such election on an instrument by instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable. Option is not
available
If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are
recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). There is no recycling of the amounts from other comprehensive income to statement of profit
and loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. Dividends on such investments
are recognised in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment.
iii) De-recognition of financial assets
A financial asset is primarily de-recognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired or the Company has transferred its
rights to receive cash flows from the asset.
4.10.B Financial liabilities
i) Borrowings and other financial liabilities
After initial recognition, the financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Amortised cost is calculated by considering any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The effect
of EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.
ii) Financial guarantee contracts
Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee
contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the
guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment requirements of Ind
AS 109 and the amount recognised less cumulative amortisation.
iii) De-recognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is
replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.
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iv) Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
v) Impairment of financial assets
All financial assets except for those at FVTPL are subject to review for impairment at least at each reporting date to identify whether there is any
objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. Different criteria to determine impairment are applied for each
category of financial assets.
In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss for
financial assets carried at amortised cost.
ECL is the weighted average of difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the Company expects to receive, discounted at the original effective interest rate, with the respective risks of default occurring as
the weights. When estimating the cash flows, the Company is required to consider –
- All contractual terms of the financial assets (including prepayment and extension) over the expected life of the assets.
- Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.
vi) Trade receivables
- For debtors that are not past due – The Company applies approach permitted by Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, which requires lifetime
expected credit losses to be recognised upon initial recognition of receivables. Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible
default events over the expected life of a financial instrument.
Life time expected credit losses are assessed and accounted based on company’s historical counter party default rates and forecast of macroeconomic factors, by dividing receivables that are not considered to be individually significant by reference to the business segment of the counter
party and other shared credit risk characteristics to evaluate the expected credit loss. The expected credit loss estimate is then based on recent
historical counter party default rates for each identified segment.
The Company defines default as an event when the financial asset is past due for more than 365 days. This definition is based on management’s
expectation of the time period beyond which if a receivable is outstanding, it is an objective evidence of impairment.
- For debtors considered past due – any enhancement in the accrual done for expected credit loss on individually significant receivables is made to
recognise any additional expected credit loss on amount recoverable. The Company writes off trade receivables when there is no objective evidence
that such amounts would be recovered. Financial assets that are written-off are still subject to enforcement activity by the Company.
vii) Other financial assets
For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines whether there has been a significant
increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If the credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company measures the
loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses, else at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses.
When making this assessment, the Company uses the change in the risk of a default occurring over the expected life of the financial asset. To make
that the Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial asset as at the balance sheet date with the risk of a default occurring on
the financial asset as at the date of initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable information, that is available without undue cost or
effort, that is indicative of significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition. The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset
has not increased significantly since initial recognition if the financial asset is determined to have low credit risk at the balance sheet date.
4.11 Leases
4.11.1 Operating Leases
Leases where the lesser effectively retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the leased assets are classified as operating leases.
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
4.11.2 Finance leases
Assets acquired on lease where the Company has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. Such assets are
capitalised at the inception of the lease at the lower of fair value or the present value of minimum lease payments and a liability is created for an
equivalent amount. Each lease rental paid is allocated between the liability and the interest cost, so as to obtain a constant periodic rate of interest
on the outstanding liability for each period. The resultant interest cost is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss on accrual basis
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4.12 Provisions & Contingencies
Provisions are recognised when there is a present obligation as a result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and there is a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are not
discounted to their present value and are determined based on management estimate required to settle the obligation at the Balance Sheet date.
Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that
arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount
cannot be made.
Contingent assets are disclosed in the Financial Statements by way of notes to accounts when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.
4.13 Cash flow Statement
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit / (loss) after tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and
any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the
Company are segregated based on the available information.
4.14 Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
year/period.
Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit after tax as adjusted for dividend, interest and other charges to expense or income
relating to the dilutive potential equity shares, by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share
and the weighted average number of equity shares which could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.
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Property, Plant and Equipment and capital work-in Progress.

[Rupees in Lakhs]

Carrying Amount of
Plant and Machinery
Dies & Mould
Furniture and Fixtures
Office Equipments
Computer
Vehicles
Store & Spares

Capital work-in-progress #
# Capital work-in-progress represents assets under installation or construction and is carried at cost.

As at
March 31, 2018
4,132.89
98.45
10.42
15.85
6.08
34.55
284.67
4,582.91

As at
March 31, 2017
3,849.78
114.54
7.74
10.50
12.82
19.71
245.70
4,260.78

As at
April 1, 2016
2,584.84
114.64
12.12
9.67
8.02
23.62
2,752.92

2.32
2.32

121.59
121.59

877.45
877.45

Cost or deemed cost
Particulars
Deemed cost at April 1, 2016
Addition for the year
Disposal / adjustments
Balance at March 31, 2017
Addition for the year
Disposal / adjustments
Balance at March 31, 2018
Accumulated Depreciation and Impairment
Accum. dep as at April 1, 2016
Depreciation expenses
Disposal / adjustments
Balance at March 31, 2017
Depreciation expenses
Disposal / adjustments
Balance at March 31, 2018

Plant and
Dies & Mould
Machinery
2,584.84
114.64
1,794.80
(44.54)
4,335.10
114.64
1,231.50
14.50
(342.56)
5,224.05
129.14

491.92
(6.60)
485.32
620.57
(14.73)
1,091.15

0.10
0.10
30.59
30.69

Furniture and
Fixtures
12.12
12.12
5.64
17.76

Office
Equipments
9.67
4.86
14.53
8.79
23.32

4.38
4.38
2.96
7.34

4.04
4.04
3.44
7.47

Computers
8.02
8.96

Vehicles

Store & Spares
250.36

Total

16.97
(1.20)
15.77

23.62
5.93
(2.02)
27.53
26.38
(0.38)
53.52

250.36
47.04
297.40

2,752.92
2,064.90
(46.57)
4,771.25
1,333.86
(344.14)
5,760.97

4.15
4.15
5.55
9.70

8.43
(0.62)
7.82
11.19
(0.02)
18.98

4.66
4.66
8.07
12.73

517.68
(7.21)
510.46
682.35
(14.76)
1,178.06

#

Carrying amount of
Particulars
Deemed cost at April 1, 2016
Addition for the year
Disposal / adjustments
Depreciation charges
Balance at March 31, 2017
Addition for the year
Disposal / adjustments
Depreciation charges
Balance at March 31, 2018

Plant and
Machinery
2,584.84
1,794.80
(44.54)
(485.32)
3,849.78
1,231.50
(342.56)
(605.84)
4,132.89

Dies & Mould
114.64
(0.10)
114.54
14.50
(30.59)
98.45

Furniture and
Fixtures
12.12
(4.38)
7.74
5.64
(2.96)
10.42

Office
Equipments
9.67
4.86
(4.04)
10.50
8.79
(3.44)
15.85

Computers
8.02
8.96
(4.15)
12.82
(1.20)
(5.55)
6.08

Vehicles
23.62
5.93
(2.02)
(7.82)
19.71
26.38
(0.38)
(11.16)
34.55

Store & Spares
250.36
(4.66)
245.70
47.04
(8.07)
284.67

Total
#

2,752.92
2,064.90
(46.57)
(510.46)
4,260.78
1,333.86
(344.14)
(667.60)
4,582.91
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413,289,026.12
9,845,440.89
6

Intangible Assets
Particulars
- Carrying amount of goodwill

(413,284,893.23) (9,845,342.44)

1,041,748.99

1,584,989.55

(1,041,738.57) (1,584,973.70)

607,585.37

3,454,633.57

28,467,239.69

(607,579.29)

(3,454,599.02)

(28,466,955.02)

As at
March 31, 2018
39.78
39.78

As at
March 31, 2017

[Rupees in Lakhs]
458,290,664.18
(458,286,081.27)
As at
April 1, 2016

39.78
39.78

39.78
39.78

Cost or deemed cost
Particulars
Deemed cost at April 1, 2016
Addition for the year
Balance at March 31, 2017
Addition for the year
Balance at March 31, 2018
Accumulated amortisation and Impairment
As at April 1, 2016
Amortisation expenses
Balance at March 31, 2017
Amortisation expenses
Balance at March 31, 2018
Carrying amount of
As at April 1, 2016
Addition for the year
Amortisation Expenses for the year
Balance at March 31, 2017
Addition for the year
Amortisation Expenses for the year
Balance at March 31, 2018

Value of Goodwill

Total

39.78
39.78
39.78

39.78
39.78
39.78

-

-

39.78
39.78
39.78

39.78
39.78
39.78
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[Rupees in Lakhs]

Investments
As at
March 31, 2018

Current
(Investment carried at fair value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL))
Investment in mutual funds

Aggregate book value of Quoted Investments
Investment in Equity oriented Mutual Fund
Quoted investment (fully paid up)
SBI saving fund - daily growth
SBI saving fund - regular growth
Aggregate book value of Quoted Investments

8

No of Units
-

As at
March 31, 2017

As at
April 1, 2016

-

411.74

379.66

-

411.74

379.66

-

350.11

350.11

Amount
-

No of Units
1,137,631.38
459,459.53

Amount
250.11
100.00
350.11

No of Units
1,137,631.38
459,459.53

Amount
250.11
100.00
350.11

Loans (unsecured and considered good, unless otherwise stated)

Non-current
Security Deposits
Other loans 1
Current
Employee related loans and advances
Other loans 2

As at
March 31, 2018

As at
March 31, 2017

As at
April 1, 2016

25.05
1,300.00
1,325.05

4.63
1,300.00
1,304.63

4.45
1,300.00
1,304.45

46.79
-

38.78
1,000.00

28.52
-

46.79

1,038.78

28.52

8.1. Other Loans includes Loan of Rs. 13 Crores, carries interest @ 10.50% p.a. and is repayable in 20 equal quarterly installments after a moratorium of four year s. The first
installment shall commence from end of quarter April to June, 2020.
8.2. Loan of Rs. 10 Crores, carries interest @15% p.a. on monthly rest and is repayable on demand
9

Inventories
(lower of cost and net realisable value)
Raw Material & Components
Work-in-progress
Finished Goods
Goods in transit of Finished Goods
Stores & Spares

As at
March 31, 2018

As at
March 31, 2017

As at
April 1, 2016

398.49
567.49
1,055.74

217.74
560.90
935.30

269.58
614.19
7.40
1,165.92

2,021.72

1,713.94

2,057.09

Note :
9.1. The cost of inventories recognised as an expense includes of Rs 169000/- (previous year of Rs. 1357000/-) in respect of provision for slow/non-moving inventory.
9.2. The mode of valuation of inventories has been stated in note 4.8
10 Trade Receivable
Unsecured - considered good
- considered doubtful
Provision for doubtful debts
Total

As at
March 31, 2018
1,689.60
-

As at
March 31, 2017
24.76
-

As at
April 1, 2016
547.32
-

1,689.60

24.76

547.32

As at
March 31, 2017
19.44
5.32
24.76

As at
April 1, 2016
547.32
547.32

10.1 The credit period generally allowed on domestic sales varies from 30 to 60 days (excluding transit period).

Age of receivables
Within the credit period
Upto 6 months past due
More than 6 months past due

As at
March 31, 2018
387.92
1,301.68
1,689.60
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11 Cash and Bank Balances
Cash and cash equivalents:
Balances with Banks
Cheques, drafts in hand
Cash in hand
Cash and cash equivalents as per cash flow statement

12 Other financial assets
(unsecured and considered good, unless otherwise stated)
Current
Financial assets carried at amortised cost
Interest accrued on Loans
Other Recoverable

13 Current Tax Assets (net)
Advance Tax (taxes paid)
Provision for Tax (Tax liability)
The above amount includes
Amount disclosed under the head "Current Tax liabilities" (Note - 23)

14 Other assets
(unsecured and considered good, unless otherwise stated)
Non-current
Capital Advances
Prepaid Expenses
Current
Advance to suppliers
Prepaid Expenses
Balance with Statutory/ Government Authorities on account of :
Excise Duty
Service Tax
VAT, Sales Tax & GST

As at
March 31, 2018

As at
March 31, 2017

[Rupees in Lakhs]
As at
April 1, 2016

2.25
30.96
0.31

0.11

0.31

33.52

0.11

0.31

As at
March 31, 2018

As at
March 31, 2017

30.29
16.08
46.37

40.61
40.61

As at
March 31, 2018
161.29
(9.15)
152.14

As at
March 31, 2017
113.76
(9.15)
104.61

As at
April 1, 2016

0.67
0.67
As at
April 1, 2016
19.70
(35.04)
(15.34)

-

-

15.34

152.14

104.61

-

As at
March 31, 2018

As at
March 31, 2017

60.26
5.54
65.79

8.79
5.38
14.17

22.42
22.42

50.25
54.13
188.46

192.80
44.96
796.46
27.85
0.98

398.43
43.06
678.70
66.30
0.52

292.84

1,063.05

1,187.01

As at
April 1, 2016
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15 Equity Share Capital
Authorised share capital:

As at
March 31, 2018

As at
March 31, 2017

[Rupees in Lakhs]
As at
April 1, 2016

5,000.00

5,000.00

5,000.00

4,605.00

4,605.00

4,605.00

4,605.00

4,605.00

4,605.00

50000000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each (As at 31.03.2017 : 50000000 Equity
Shares & As at 01.04.2016 :50000000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each )
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up share capital comprises:
46050000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each ( As at 31.03.2017 : 46050000 Equity
Shares & As at 01.04.2016 :46050000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each )

a) Rights, Preference and restriction attached to equity shares
- The company has only one class of equity share, having per value of Rs.10/- per share. Each holder of equity share is entitled for one vote per share and has a right to
receive dividend as recommended by the board of directors subject to the necessary approval from shareholders
- In the event of liquidation of the company, the holder of equity share will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company after distribution of all preferential
amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the equity shareholders.
b) Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year
As at
March 31, 2018
No. of Shares
Balance as at the beginning of the year
Issued during the year
Balance as at the end of the year

As at
March 31, 2017

Amount

46,050,000
46,050,000

4,605.00
4,605.00

c) Shares held by holding /ultimate holding company and /or their subsidiaries /associates
As at
March 31, 2018
No. of Shares

Amount

No. of Shares

As at
April 1, 2016

Amount

46,050,000
46,050,000

4,605.00
4,605.00

As at
March 31, 2017
No. of Shares

No. of Shares

Amount

46,050,000
46,050,000

4,605.00
4,605.00

As at
April 1, 2016

Amount

No. of Shares

Amount

Rico Investments Limited ,[ Holding Co.] and its nominees
46,050,000
46050000 equity shares @ Rs 10 each fully paid up
(Previous years 46050000 equity shares @ Rs 10 each fully paid up)

4,605.00

46,050,000

4,605.00

46,050,000

4,605.00

46,050,000

4,605.00

46,050,000

4,605.00

46,050,000

4,605.00

d) Details of shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares
As at
March 31, 2018
Equity shares of Rs 10/- fully paid
Rico Investments Limited [Holding co.] and its nominees

No. of Shares
46,050,000

As at
March 31, 2017

% of holding
100.00%

No. of Shares
46,050,000

As at
April 1, 2016

% of holding
100%

No. of Shares
46,050,000

% of holding
100%

16 Other Equity

General reserve
Securities premium reserve
Retained earnings

As at
March 31, 2018
142.94

As at
March 31, 2017
135.19

As at
April 1, 2016

142.94

135.19

76.99

As at
March 31, 2018
135.19
(12.72)
20.47
142.94

As at
March 31, 2017
76.99
90.05
(31.84)
135.19

76.99

Retained earnings

Balance at beginning of year
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income arising from remeasurement of defined benefit obligation *
Amount transferred to general reserves
Balance at end of year
* Net of Income Tax of Rs 9.15 Lacs (Previous Year of Rs 14.23 lacs)
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17 Borrowings

Non-current
Secured
Term loan from Bank
Unsecured
Term loan from financial institution

[Rupees in Lakhs]
As at
March 31, 2018
1,050.00

Current
Secured
Loans repayable on demand from bank
- Cash Credit and Overdraft#

As at
April 1, 2016

-

-

28.97

145.47

28.97

145.47

(300.00)
750.00

(28.97)
-

(116.50)
28.97

280.97

-

-

280.97

-

-

1,050.00

The above amount includes
Amount disclosed under the head "Current Maturities of long term debt"

As at
March 31, 2017

Security Detail and Term of Repayment of Borrowings:
17.1. Term Loan from Financial institution amounting to Rs. NIL (as at 31.03.18) Rs. 28.97 lakh (31.03.17), includes the liability taken over as part of undertaking purchased
from Rico Auto Industries Limited (Ultimate Holding Company) to be repaid to Tata Capital Financial Services Limited. Since the liability has been taken over as part of the
purchase of undertaking repayment of the same is to be made to Rico Auto Industries Limited by the company which in turn will make the payment to Tata Capital Financial
Services Limited. The Loan carries interest @ 13.50% p.a. and is repayable in Rs 9,70,000/- equal monthly installments. Last installment of R. 9,70,000/- was paid during the
year.
17.2. Loan from Bank, includes Term Loan from RBL bank, which carries Interest @ MCLR payable on monthly rest, Loan is repayable in 48 months after moratorium of 6
months starting from June 2018 in 14 equal quartly installments. Loan is secured against entire fixed assets present and future and Letter of comfort issued by Rico Auto
Industries Ltd. (Ultimate Holding Co.).
17.3. Cash credit facility of Rs. 3 crore is also obtained from RBL Bank, which carries interest rate one month MCLR plus 0.25% payable at monthly rest. Loan is secured
against entire current assets , both present & future and Letter of comfort issued by Rico Auto Industries Ltd. (Ultimate Holding Co.).
18 Other Financial Liabilities

Non-current
Security Deposit

The above amount includes
Amount disclosed under the head "Current"

Current
Security Deposit (refer from Non-current, Note-18)
Current maturities of long term debts (Refer from note -17)
Payables to capital creditors
Interest accrued

19 Provisions

Non-current
Employee benefits
- Provision for Gratuity
- Provision for Compensated Absences

Current
Employee benefits
- Provision for Compensated Absences
- Provision for Gratuity
Other Provisions
- Provision for Rent Equalisation
- Others

As at
March 31, 2018

As at
March 31, 2017

As at
April 1, 2016

20.87

18.99

34.71

20.87

18.99

34.71

(6.36)

(6.64)

(20.70)

14.52

12.35

14.01

6.36
300.00
21.63
3.06

6.64
28.97
13.37
-

20.70
116.50
35.26
-

331.05

48.99

172.47

As at
March 31, 2018

As at
March 31, 2017

610.86
150.08

573.16
148.67

471.65
134.34

760.94

721.83

605.99

6.29
15.51

10.45
22.91

5.43
10.56

106.29
128.09

108.38
141.75

0.02
158.71
174.72

As at
April 1, 2016
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20 Deferred Tax Liabilities

Property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets
Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss
Accrued expenses allowed in the year of payment
Remeasurement of Defined Benefit Obligations
Carry forward of Losses for future years
Mat Credit Entitlement
Deferred tax liabilities/(assets) (Net)

[Rupees in Lakhs]

As at
March 31, 2018
181.10
(63.51)
(5.08)
(80.00)
(15.89)

As at
March 31, 2017
177.96
19.04
(61.68)
(14.24)
(36.76)
(15.89)

16.61

As at
April 1, 2016
90.51
9.13
(45.93)
(6.74)

68.44

46.97

Significant components of net deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows:
Opening
Balance

For the year ended March 31, 2017
Property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets
Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss
Accrued expenses allowed in the year of payment
Remeasurement of Defined Benefit Obligations
Carry forward of Losses for future years
Mat Credit Entitlement
Net deferred tax liabilities
For the year ended March 31, 2018
Property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets
Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss
Accrued expenses allowed in the year of payment
Remeasurement of Defined Benefit Obligations
Carry forward of Losses for future years
Mat Credit Entitlement
Net deferred tax liabilities

Recognised in
Profit or Loss

Recognised
in OCI

Closing
Balance

90.51
9.13
(45.93)
(6.74)

87.45
9.91
(15.75)
(36.76)
(9.15)

(14.24)
-

177.96
19.04
(61.68)
(14.24)
(36.76)
(15.89)

46.97

35.70

(14.24)

68.44

177.96
19.04
(61.68)
(14.24)
(36.76)
(15.89)

3.14
(19.04)
(1.84)
(43.24)
-

9.15

181.10
(63.51)
(5.08)
(80.00)
(15.89)

68.44

(60.98)

9.15

16.61

Note: Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities have been offset as they are governed by the same taxation laws.
Note: In view of the Company’s past financial performance and future profit projections, the Company expects that it shall generate sufficient future taxable income to fully recover
the deferred tax assets.
21 Other Liabilities

Current
Advance from customers
Statutory Liabilities
Payables to employee benefits
Others

22 Trade Payable

Dues to Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises *
Due to related parties (Refer Note No 37)
Other Payables

As at
March 31, 2018

As at
March 31, 2017

As at
April 1, 2016

7.92
342.56
478.83
829.31

4.84
120.53
466.92
592.29

1.97
131.30
439.71
572.98

As at
March 31, 2018
90.13
254.43
2,094.84

As at
March 31, 2017
30.82
1,283.39
2,498.50

As at
April 1, 2016
59.76
1.32
2,823.08

2,439.40

3,812.71

2,884.16

* The Company pays its vendors within 45 days and pays Interest where the period exceeds 45 Days. During the year company has made a provision Rs. 305,991/- towards
the interest in terms of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.
23 Income tax liabilities (net)
Income Tax payable (net) (refer Note no -13)

As at
March 31, 2018
-

As at
March 31, 2017
-

As at
April 1, 2016
15.34
15.34
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[Rupees in Lakhs]

24 Revenue from operations

Sale of Product (Inclusive of excise duty)
Sale of Product

Other operating revenues
Sale of Scrap
Income from Services (Job work Charges)
Others

Total Revenue

As at
March 31, 2018

As at
March 31, 2017

23,047.88
23,047.88

22,307.14
22,307.14

214.83
1,326.87
50.85
1,592.55

235.02
4,701.22
53.22
4,989.46

24,640.43

27,296.60

As at
March 31, 2018

As at
March 31, 2017

165.85
41.70
20.47
0.46
0.22
228.70

190.87
41.70
0.87
57.52
32.08
2.60
325.64

As at
March 31, 2018
217.74
8,913.41
398.49
8,732.66

As at
March 31, 2017
269.58
9,846.88
217.74
9,898.72

As at
March 31, 2018

As at
March 31, 2017

560.90
560.90

614.19
614.19

567.49
567.49

560.90
560.90

25 Other Income

Interest Incomes
Rental Income
Exchange Rate Fluctuation (Net)
Net gain on sale of property, plant and equipment
Net gain on sale of investments in debt mutual funds
Fair valuation gain on investment in debt mutual funds
Miscellaneous Income

26 Raw Material & Components consumed

Raw material at the beginning of the year
Add: Purchase during the year
Less: Raw material at the end of the year

27 Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-trade

Inventories at the beginning of year
Work-in-progress
Finished goods
Inventories at the end of year
Work-in-progress
Finished goods

Net Changes in Inventories

(6.58)

53.29

28 Employee Benefit expenses

Salaries and Wages
Contribution to provident and other funds
Staff Welfare expenses

As at
March 31, 2018
3,292.62
172.05
164.33

As at
March 31, 2017
3,138.54
178.49
106.89

3,629.00

3,423.92
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29 Finance Costs

Bank Charges
Interest costs:
- Term Loan
- Cash credit & Overdraft
Other Interest costs

[Rupees in Lakhs]
As at
March 31, 2018
1.37

As at
March 31, 2017
0.83

50.28
7.87
4.19

9.92
1.89

63.71

12.65

As at
March 31, 2018
682.35
-

As at
March 31, 2017
517.68
-

682.35

517.68

As at
March 31, 2018

As at
March 31, 2017

380.97
142.42
850.49
977.60
5,382.57
1,448.63
908.91
101.34
24.76
22.28
117.27
2.04
18.58
7.09
5.30
24.11
407.72
37.66
83.83
17.84
41.32
0.35
39.83
4.76
18.57

276.92
138.63
836.84
961.33
5,172.30
1,358.53
925.13
122.83
11.27
40.43
108.67
2.19
16.36
7.51
3.20
22.45
515.97
48.79
79.22
18.11
22.20
39.64
3.98
29.32

4.75
0.25
11,071.24

4.75
0.25
10,766.83

As at
March 31, 2018

As at
March 31, 2017

25.15
38.16
63.31

23.82
46.23
70.05

30 Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Amortisation of intangible assets

31 Other Expenses

Consumption of Stores & Spares
Mechanical Spares Consumed
Electrical Spares Consumed
Consumable Tools Consumed
Others Stores & Spares Consumed
Power & Fuel
Sub Contractor Expenses
Rent
Repair and maintenance: Plant and machinery
Repair and maintenance: building
Repair and maintenance: Others
Insurance
Rates & Taxes
Printing & Stationery
Communication Expenses
Directors' Sitting Fees
Travelling & Conveyance
Legal and Professional
Vehicle Running and Maintenance Expenses
Freight and forwarding expenses
DG Hire Charges
Line Rejection and re-work charges
Exchange loss on foreign currency
Testing Charges
Other Miscellaneous Expenses
Provision for Bad and doubtful debts
Swachh Bharat Cess & KKC etc.
Payment to Auditors;
Audit Fees (incl.of Limited Reviews)
Taxation Matters
Others

32 Exceptional Items

Service Compensation
VRS Benefit
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33.1

[Rupees in Lakhs]

Income Taxes
Income tax recognised in profit or loss
Particulars
Current Tax
In respect of the current year

Deferred Tax
In respect of the current year
Mat Credit Entitlement (Reversal)

Total income tax expense recognised in the current year

For the year ended
March 31, 2018

For the year ended March
31, 2017

-

9.15

-

9.15

(60.98)
-

44.85
(9.15)

(60.98)

35.70

(60.98)

44.85

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows
For the year ended
March 31, 2018
Profit before tax

(73.70)

134.90

Tax at the rate of 33.063% (i.e. applicable tax rate 33.063% )
Exempted Income
Accrued expenses allowed in the year of payment

-

44.60
(29.14)
(15.46)

Current Tax Provision

-

-

3.14

87.45

(64.12)

(42.60)

(60.98)

44.85

Incremental deferred tax liability on account of property, plant and equipment and Intangible
assets
Incremental deferred tax liability/ (Assets) on account of Financial Assets and other items.
Deferred Tax Provision
33.2

Income tax recognised in other comprehensive income
Arising on income and expenses recognised in other comprehensive income
- Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation

34

Profit for the year, as per Statement of Profit & Loss (Rs.)
Weighted average number of equity shares for the purposes of
basic/diluted earnings per share (in Nos)
Basic Earning Per share (Rs.)
Diluted Earning Per share (Rs.)

35.1

For the year ended
March 31, 2018

For the year ended March
31, 2017

9.15

(14.24)

9.15

(14.24)

Earning per share (EPS)
Earning Per Share (EPS) computed in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 33 issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India:

Particulars

35

For the year ended March
31, 2017

For the year ended
March 31, 2018

For the year ended March
31, 2017

(12.72)

90.05

46,050,000
(0.03)
(0.03)

46,050,000
0.20
0.20

Retirement and Other Employee Benefits
The various benefits provided to employees by the Company are as under:
Defined contribution plans
- Employers contribution to Employee State Insurance
- Employers contribution to provident fund & other fund
During the year the Company has recognised the following amounts in the statement of profit and loss:

Employers contribution to provident fund
Employers contribution to ESI

March 31, 2018
153.37
17.12

March 31, 2017
162.38
14.34
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35.2
Defined benefit plans and other long term benefits
- Employers contribution to gratuity fund
- Leave encashment/compensated absences

[Rupees in Lakhs]

These plans typically expose the Company to actuarial risks such as: investment risk, interest rate risk, demographic risk and salary risk.
Investment risk
The probability or likelihood of occurrence of losses relative to the expected return on any particular investment.
Interest risk:
The plan exposes the Company to the risk of fall in interest rates. A fall in interest rates will result in an increase in the ultimate cost of providing the above benefit
and will thus result in an increase in the value of the liability. (as shown in financial statements).
Demographic Risk:
The Company has used certain mortality and attrition assumptions in valuation of the liability. The Company is exposed to the risk of actual experience turning out to
be worse compared to the assumption.
Salary Risk:
The present value of the defined benefit plan is calculated with the assumption of salary increase rate of plan participants in future. Deviation in the rate of increase
of salary in future for plan participants from the rate of increase in salary used to determine the present value of obligation will have a bearing on the plan's liability.
a) The principal assumptions used for the purpose of the actuarial valuations were as follows:
Particulars

Gratuity Fund

Leave encashment/
Compensated Absences

As at March 31, 2018
Discount rate
Salary escalation rate
Expected rate of return on plan assets

7.80%
6.25%
0.00

7.80%
6.25%
0.00

As at March 31, 2017
Discount rate
Salary escalation rate
Expected rate of return on plan assets

7.40%
6.25%
0.00%

7.40%
6.25%
0.00%
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b) Components of expenses recognised in the statement of profit or loss in respect of:

[Rupees in Lakhs]
Employee Gratuity
Fund

Year ended March 31, 2018
Current Service Cost
Past Service Cost
Actuarial (gain)/ loss
Net Interest Cost / (Income) on the Net Defined Benefit Liability / (Asset)
Expenses recognised in profit or loss
Year ended March 31, 2017
Current Service Cost
Past Service Cost
Actuarial (gain)/ loss
Net Interest Cost / (Income) on the Net Defined Benefit Liability / (Asset)
Expenses recognised in profit or loss

Leave encashment/
Compensated Absences

51.19
44.08
95.27

45.28
11.77
57.05

50.45
38.55
89.00

60.68
11.17
71.85

c) Components of expenses recognised in the other comprehensive income in respect of:
Employee Gratuity
Fund
Year ended March 31, 2018
- Changes in demographic assumptions
- Changes in financial assumptions
- Experience variance
- Others
Return on plan assets, excluding amount recognised in net interest expense
Remeasurement (or actuarial)(gain)/loss arising because of change in effect of asset ceiling

Component of defined benefit costs recognised in other comprehensive income
Year ended March 31, 2017
- Changes in demographic assumptions
- Changes in financial assumptions
- Experience variance
- Others
Return on plan assets, excluding amount recognised in net interest expense
Remeasurement (or actuarial)(gain)/loss arising because of change in effect of asset ceiling
Component of defined benefit costs recognised in other comprehensive income

Leave encashment/
Compensated Absences

(32.22)
2.59
(29.62)

-

(12.19)
58.26
46.08

-

The current service cost and the interest expense for the year are included in the 'Employee benefits expense' in the profit or loss.
The remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability is included in other comprehensive income

d) The amount included in the balance sheet arising from the entity's obligation in respect of its defined benefit plans is as follows
Gratuity Fund
As at March 31, 2018
Present value of obligation
Fair value of plan assets
Surplus / (deficit)
Effects of asset ceiling, if any
Net asset / (liability)
As at March 31, 2017
Present value of obligation
Fair value of plan assets
Surplus / (deficit)
Effects of asset ceiling, if any
Net asset / (liability)

Leave encashment/
Compensated Absences

626.37
(626.37)
(626.37)

156.37
(156.37)
(156.37)

596.07
(596.07)
(596.07)

159.12
(159.12)
(159.12)
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e) Movement in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

[Rupees in Lakhs]
Leave encashment/
Compensated Absences

Gratuity Fund
Year ended March 31, 2018
Present value of obligation as at the beginning
Current service cost
Interest expense or cost
Remeasurement (or actuarial) (gain) / loss arising from:
- Changes in demographic assumptions
- Changes in financial assumptions
- Experience variance
- Others
Past service cost
Benefits paid
Present value of obligation as at the end
Year ended March 31, 2017
Present value of obligation as at the beginning
Current service cost
Interest expense or cost
Remeasurement (or actuarial) (gain) / loss arising from:
- Changes in demographic assumptions
- Changes in financial assumptions
- Experience variance
- Others
Past service cost
Benefits paid
Present value of obligation as at the end

596.07
51.19
44.08

159.12
21.01
11.77

(32.22)
2.59
(35.35)
626.36

(8.17)
32.44
(59.80)
156.37

482.21
50.45
38.55

139.77
20.64
11.17

(12.19)
58.26
(21.22)
596.06

(3.21)
43.25
(52.50)
159.12

f) Movement in the fair value of the plan assets are as follows:
Leave encashment/
Compensated Absences

Gratuity Fund
Year ended March 31, 2018
Year ended March 31, 2017

NIL
NIL

NIL
NIL

g) Major categories of plan assets (as percentage of total plan assets)
Leave encashment/
Compensated Absences

Gratuity Fund
Year ended March 31, 2018
Year ended March 31, 2017

NIL
NIL

NIL
NIL

Sensitivity Analysis for gratuity liability
Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are discount rate, expected salary increase and mortality. The sensitivity
analysis below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all
other assumptions constant. The results of sensitivity analysis is given below:
March 31, 2018

Particulars
Defined Benefit Obligation (Base)

Particulars

March 31, 2017
626.37

596.07

March 31, 2017

March 31, 2018
Decrease

Increase

Decrease

Increase

Discount Rate (- / + 0.5%)

40.59

(37.29)

40.10

(36.74)

(% change compared to base due to sensitivity)

6.50%

-6.00%

6.70%

-6.20%

Salary Growth Rate (- / + 0.5%)

(37.98)

41.01

(37.29)

40.36

(% change compared to base due to sensitivity)

-6.10%

6.50%

-6.30%

6.80%

Attrition Rate (- / + 50% of attrition rates)

(6.50)

5.78

(4.54)

3.96

(% change compared to base due to sensitivity)

-1.0%

0.9%

-0.80%

0.70%

Mortality Rate (- / + 10% of mortality rates)

(0.37)

0.37

(0.27)

0.27

(% change compared to base due to sensitivity)

-0.1%

0.1%

0.00%

0.00%
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[Rupees in Lakhs]

Financial instruments and risk management

36.1 A Financial Instruments by Category
March 31, 2018
FVTPL
Financial assets*
Non Current
Loans
Current
Investments
Trade Receivables
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Loans
Derivative financial assets
Other financial assets
Total financial assets
Financial liabilities
Non Current
Borrowings (excluding current maturities)
Other financial liabilities
Current
Borrowings
Trade payables
Other financial liabilities
Total financial liabilities

March 31, 2017

Amortised Cost

-

FVTPL

April 1, 2016

Amortised Cost

1,325.05

411.74

FVTPL

Amortised Cost

1,304.63

-

1,689.60
33.52
46.79
46.37
3,141.33

-

750.00
14.52

12.35

-

28.97
14.00

-

280.97
2,439.40
331.05

3,812.72
48.99

-

2,884.17
172.47

-

3,815.94

3,874.06

-

3,099.61

411.74

-

24.76
0.11
1,038.78
40.61
2,408.89

1,304.45
379.66

379.66

547.32
0.31
28.52
0.67
1,881.27

36.1.a Fair value hierarchy
The fair value of financial instruments as referred to in note above has been classified into three categories depending on the inputs used in the valuation technique.
The hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities [Level 1 measurements ] and lowest priority to unobservable
inputs [Level 3 measurements].The categories used are as follows:
Level 1: Quoted prices for identical instruments in an active market.
Level 2: Directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices) observable market inputs, other than Level 1 inputs and
Level 3: Inputs which are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). Fair values are determined in whole or in part using a net asset value or valuation
model based on assumptions that are neither supported by prices from observable current market transactions in the same instrument nor are they based on available
market data.
36.1.b Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value - recurring fair value measurements
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Current Investment in Mutual Funds
Current Investment in Mutual Funds
Current Investment in Mutual Funds

As at
March 31,2018
March 31,2017
April 01,2016

Level 1
-

Level 2
411.74
379.66

Level 3
-

Total
411.74
379.66

36.1.c Valuation technique used to determine fair value
The fair value of investments in mutual fund units is based on the net asset value (NAV) as stated by the issuers of these mutual fund units in the published statements
as at the Balance Sheet date. NAV represents the price at which the issuer will issue further units of mutual fund and the price at which issuers will redeem such units
from the investors.
Note: There were no specific financial instruments which were fair valued using level 3 indicators hence no unobservable inputs.
Note: Management considers that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised cost approximate their fair values.
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[Rupees in Lakhs]

Financial risk management

The Company, is exposed to various market risks, credit risk and liquidity risk. The company’s management structure, distribution of activities to the various plants and
the head office makes up the organised risk management system. The laid down processes, periodic communication, control framework and management process
consisting of planning, controlling and monitoring collectively form the risk management system used to define, record and minimise operating, financial and strategic
risks. Below notes explain the sources of risk in which the company is exposed to and how it manages the risk.
36.2.A Market risk:
a. Price risk:
The Company is using alminium and ferrous items for production of various products. Fluctuation in commodity prices in global market affects directly and indirectly the
price of raw material and components used by the Company in manufacturing its various product segments. Further, Pricing pressure from its major Customer to give
price cuts and the inability to pass on the increased cost of inputs to the customers may also affect the profitability of the company. The Price risk arises due to fluctuation
in prices of these commodities.
The Company has a risk management framework aimed at prudently managing the risk arising from the volatility in commodity prices. The Company’s commodity risk is
managed centrally through well-established trading operations and control processes. Further, the Company is having arrangement with major customer for actualization
of raw material price variations periodically.
b. Foreign currency risk:
Foreign currency risk arise from monetary receivables and obligations expressed in a currency other than functional currency of the Company. Primarily the Company is
catering to customers in local currency. However, in respect of import of BOP and spares (which accounts for only 2% of the total material consumption) there is an
exposure to foreign Currency risks which are managed within approved policy parameters.
The derivative instruments and unhedged foreign currency exposure is as follows:
(i) Derivatives outstanding as at the reporting date
Particulars / Purpose
Forward Contract (Buy)

Currency

March 31, 2018

March 31, 2017

April 1, 2016

USD : INR

Nil

Nil

Nil

(ii) Particulars of unhedged foreign exposure as at the reporting date
The company exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period expressed in INR are as follows:
March 31,2018
Particulars

USD

JPY

EURO

GBP

Total

Trade payable

0.50

6.46

8.15

0.95

16.06

Net payable

0.50

6.46

8.15

0.95

16.06

Sensitivity to increase of 1%
Sensitivity to decrease of 1%

(0.01)
0.01

(0.06)
0.06

(0.08)
0.08

(0.01)
0.01

(0.16)
0.16

March 31,2017
Particulars

USD

JPY

EURO

GBP

Total

6.23

-

2.92

9.15

Trade payable
Net payable

-

6.23

-

2.92

9.15

Sensitivity to increase of 1%
Sensitivity to decrease of 1%

-

(0.06)
0.06

-

(0.03)
0.03

(0.09)
0.09

USD

JPY

EURO

GBP

Total

4.99

5.69

1.69

12.37

April 01,2016
Particulars
Trade payable
Net payable

-

4.99

5.69

1.69

12.37

Sensitivity to increase of 1%
Sensitivity to decrease of 1%

-

(0.05)
0.05

(0.06)
0.06

(0.02)
0.02

(0.12)
0.12
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c. Interest rate risk:
Interest rate is the risk that fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of change in market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to
the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s long term debt obligation at floating interest rates.
The exposure of the Company’s borrowing at variable rate and fixed rate at the end of reporting period are as follows:
March 31, 2018
Variable rate borrowings
Fixed rate borrowings
Total borrowings

1,330.97
1,330.97

March 31, 2017

April 1, 2016

28.97
28.97

145.48
145.48

Profit / loss is sensitive to higher / lower interest expense from borrowings as a results of changes in interest rates. Holding all other variable constant, the following table
demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rate on floating portion of borrowings.
For the year ended
March 31, 2018
Variable rate borrowings

Interest rate increase by 0.5%
Interest rate decrease by 0.5%

3.13
(3.13)

For the year ended
March 31, 2017
Nil
Nil

36.2.B
Credit Risk :
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations towards the Company
and arises principally from the Company’s receivables from customers and liquid investments with banking institutions / mutual funds. The maximum amount of the
credit exposure is equal to the carrying amounts of these receivables.
The Company has developed guidelines for the management of credit risk from trade receivables. The Company’s primary customer, is its ultimate holding company with
good credit rating . Other customers are subjected to credit assessments as a precautionary measure, and the adherence of all customers to payment due dates is
monitored on an on-going basis, thereby practically eliminating the risk of default.
36.2.C
Liquidity risk:
Liquidity risk arises from the Company’s inability to meet its cash flow commitments on time. Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient stock of
cash and marketable securities and maintaining availability of standby funding through an adequate line up of committed credit facilities.
The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities to meet the obligations when due.
Management monitors rolling forecasts of liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows. In addition, liquidity management also
involves projecting cash flows considering level of liquid assets necessary to meet obligations by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets & liabilities and
monitoring balance sheet liquidity ratios.
(a) Maturities of financial liabilities
The following tables detail the Company’s remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities with agreed repayment periods. The information
included in the tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Company can be required
to pay. The contractual maturity is based on the earliest date on which the Company may be required to pay.

As at March 31, 2018
Borrowing
Trade Payable (Goods, Service & Capital Goods)
Security Deposit
Others
Total

As at March 31, 2017
Borrowing
Trade Payable (Goods, Service & Capital Goods)
Security Deposit
Total

As at April 01, 2016
Borrowing
Trade Payable (Goods, Service & Capital Goods)
Security Deposit
Total

0- 3 months
355.97
2,461.03
3.06
2,820.06
0- 3 months

3 - 6 months
75.00

75.00
3 - 6 months

6 months - 1 Year

1 - 3 Years

150.00

600.00

6.36

14.52

156.36

614.52

6 months - 1 Year

1 - 3 Years

More than 3 years
150.00

150.00
More than 3 years

28.97
3,826.09

3,855.06
0- 3 months
29.13
2,919.43

2,948.56

3 - 6 months
29.13

29.13

6.64

12.35

6.64

12.35

6 months - 1 Year

1 - 3 Years

58.25

28.97

20.70

14.00

78.96

42.97

Total
1,330.97
2,461.03
20.88
3.06
3,815.94
Total
28.97
3,826.09
18.99

More than 3 years

3,874.05
Total
145.48
2,919.43
34.71

-

3,099.62
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36.3 Capital management
The Company’ s capital management objectives are:
-- to ensure the company’s ability to continue as a going concern
-- to provide an adequate return to shareholders
The Company monitors capital on the basis of the carrying amount of equity less cash and cash equivalents as presented on the face of the balance
sheet.
Management assesses the Company’s capital requirements in order to maintain an efficient overall financing structure while avoiding excessive
leverage. The Company manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of any changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends,
return capital to shareholders, issue new shares, or sell assets to reduce debt.
A. Net Debt (Total Debt less cash and cash equivalents) divided by Total equity
Particulars

As at
March 31, 2018
1,297.45
4,747.94
0.27

Net Debts
Total Equity
Net debts to Total Equity

As at
March 31, 2017
28.86
4,740.19
0.01

As at
April 1, 2016
145.17
4,681.99
0.03

Loan covenants
The Company is in compliant with all the loan covenants on all the borrowings outstanding as on the financial statements date.
B. Dividends
Particulars
On Equity share of Rs.10 each
Final Dividend
- Amount of dividend paid
- Dividend per equity share
Interim Dividend
- Amount of dividend paid
- Dividend per equity share

For the year ended
March 31, 2018

For the year ended
March 31, 2017

Nil
Nil

Nil
Nil

Nil
Nil

Nil
Nil
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Related party disclosures
Names of related parties and related party relationship
i) Related parties where control exists
Description of Relationship
Rico Auto Industries Ltd
Ultimate holding company
Rico Investments Ltd.
Immediate Holding Company
Rico Jinfie Wheels Ltd
RASA Autocom Ltd

Fellow subsidiary
Fellow subsidiary

AAN Engineering Industries Ltd
Uttrakhand Automotives Limited
Rico Auto Industries Inc. (USA)
Rico Auto Industries (UK) Ltd.

Under common management
Under common management
Under common management
Under common management

ii) Key Management personnel
Details of Key Managerial personnel are as under :
Name of key persons
Mr. Akash Goyal
Shri Mukesh Goyal
Shri Ranjeet Singh Yadav

[Rupees in Lakhs]

Company Secretary
Chief Financial Officer
Manager

Related party transactions
The following table provides the total amount of transactions that have been entered into with related parties for the relevant financial year :
March 31, 2018
March 31, 2017
i).Rico Auto Industries Ltd.
Transactions during the year
Sale of Finished / Unfinished Goods
25,560.45
22,884.13
Job Work Income
1,576.21
4,701.22
Purchase of Raw Material /consumables/store
1,820.02
2,139.59
Purchase of Capital Goods
322.59
332.83
Sale of Capital Goods
321.15
3.53
Support service expenses
448.21
557.48
Rent income
48.89
47.96
Rent paid
897.88
900.51
Interest paid
10.24
Loan taken
0.23
Reimbursement of Expenses (Paid)
5,171.01
5,153.84
Amount payable
231.45
1,258.57
Amount receivable
ii).AAN Engineering Industries Ltd
Transactions during the year
Sale of Capital Goods
Purchase of Raw Material /consumables/store
Sale of Consumable / Stores
Amount payable
Amount receivable

8.53
46.22
0.02
22.98
-

8.07
1.45
1.46
-

iii).Rico Jinfie Wheels Ltd.
Transactions during the year
Purchase of Raw Material /consumables/store
Sale of Capital Goods
Reimbursement of Expenses
Amount payable
Amount receivable

0.25
39.47
14.09
56.63

-

-

6.77
0.02
5.32

43.20
2.66
23.61
69.47

34.49
3.33
0.98
19.16
57.96

v).Rasa Autocom Ltd.
Transactions during the year
Sale of Capital Goods
Purchase of Consumable
Amount payable
Amount receivable
vi). Key Management Personnel
Remuneration paid to Key Management Personnel
Mr. Ranjeet Singh Yadav
Ms. Manpreet Kaur Kochhar
Mr. Akash Goyal
Mr. Mukesh Goyal
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Capital and other commitments
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on account of capital commitment Rs. 104.71 Lakhs (previous year Rs. 163.81 Lakhs) net of
advance Rs 60.26 Lakhs (previous year Rs. 9.30 Lakhs)

39

Contingent Liabilities
a) Claims not acknowledged by the Company relating to cases contested by the Company and
which, in the opinion of the Management, are not likely devolve on the Company
b) Demand against the company acknowledged as liability i.e. Income Tax, Sales Tax etc.

40

Value of imports calculated on CIF basis
Raw Material & Components
Consumable Stores
Capital Goods

41

Income in Foreign Currency (Accrual Basis)
Export Sales

42

Expenditure in Foreign Currency (Accrual Basis)
Foreign Travels expenses

43

Imported and indigenous raw material, components and spares parts consumed
Raw Material
Indigenous
Imported
Percentage of total consumption
Indigenous
Imported

Components
Indigenous
Imported
Percentage of total consumption
Indigenous
Imported
Stores & Spares
Indigenous
Imported
Percentage of total consumption
Indigenous
Imported

March 31, 2018

March 31, 2017

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

March 31, 2018
39.14
84.93
166.54

March 31, 2017
27.41
44.17
45.33

March 31, 2018
-

March 31, 2017
-

March 31, 2018
-

March 31, 2017
1.27

March 31, 2018

March 31, 2017

6,529.79
6,529.79

8,358.55
8,358.55

100%
-

100%
-

2,146.75
49.54
2,196.29

1,543.82
49.64
1,593.46

0.98
0.02

0.97
0.03

2,317.13
34.35
2,351.48

2,171.43
42.28
2,213.71

99%
1%

98%
2%
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First-time adoption of Ind AS
These are the first financial statements prepared in accordance with Ind AS by the Company.
The accounting policies and other principles set out in Note 3 and 4 have been applied in preparing financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018, the
comparative information presented in these financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017 and in preparation of an opening Ind AS balance sheet at April
01, 2016 (the transition date). In preparing its opening Ind AS balance sheet , the Company has adjusted the amounts reported previously in financial statements
prepared in accordance with the accounting standards notified under Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006(as amended) and other relevant provisions of
the act (previous GAAP or Indian GAAP).
An explanation of how the transition from previous GAAP to Ind AS has affected the Company’s financial position, financial performance and cash flows is set out in
following tables and notes.
44.1

Exemptions and exceptions availed

Set out below are the applicable Ind AS 101 optional exemptions and mandatory exceptions applied in the transition from previous GAAP to Ind AS.
44.2 Ind AS optional exemptions
44.2.a Deemed cost for property, plant and equipment
Ind AS 101 permits a first time adopter to elect to continue with the carrying value for all of its property, plants and equipment as recognised in the financial
statements as at the date of transition to Ind AS, measured as per the previous GAAP and use that as its deemed cost as at the date of transition after making
necessary adjustments for de-commissioning liabilities. This exemption can also used for intangible assets covered by Ind AS 38 Intangible Assets.
44.2.b

Leases

In accordance with Ind-AS transitional provisions, the company opted to determine whether an arrangement existing at the date of transition contains a lease on
the basis of facts and circumstances existing at the date of transition rather than at the inception of the arrangement.
44.2.c Designation of investment in equity instruments
Ind AS 101 allows an entity to designate previously recognised financial instruments basis the facts and circumstances that existed as on transition date. The
Company has opted to designate equity investments as at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL) based on the facts and circumstances existing at the date of
transition to Ind AS.
44.3 Ind AS Mandatory exemptions
An entity's estimates in accordance with Ind ASs at the date of transition to Ind AS shall be consistent with estimates made for the same date in accordance with
previous GAAP (after adjustments to reflect any difference in accounting policies), unless there is objective evidence that those estimates were in error
Ind AS estimates as at April 01, 2016 are consistent with the estimates as at the same date made in confirmity with previous GAAP (after adjustments to reflect any
difference in accounting policies) apart from certain new estimates that were not required under previous GAAP.
44.4 Reconciliations between previous GAAP and Ind AS
Ind AS 101 requires an entity to reconcile equity, total comprehensive income and cash flows for prior periods. The following tables represent the reconciliations
from previous GAAP to Ind AS.
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44.4.a Effect of Ind AS adoption on the balance sheet as at March 31, 2017 and April 1, 2016
Particulars

Notes No.

IGAAP As at
March 31,2017

Ind AS (adj.)
as at March 31, 2017

Ind AS as at
March 31, 2017

IGAAP As at
April 1, 2016

Ind AS (adj.)
as at 31-03-2016

Ind AS BS as at
April 1, 2016

4,260.78
121.59
39.78
1,304.63
14.17
5,740.95

2,752.92
877.45
39.78
1,304.45
22.42
4,997.02

-

2,752.92
877.45
39.78
1,304.45
22.42
4,997.02

2,057.09
350.11
547.32
0.31
28.52
0.67
1,187.01

29.55
-

4,171.03

29.55

9,168.05

29.55

2,057.09
379.66
547.32
0.31
28.52
0.67
1,187.01
4,200.58
9,197.60

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Capital work-in-progress
Intangible assets
Financial Assets;
- Investments
- Loans
- Other Financial assets
Other non-current assets
Total non-current assets
Current assets
Inventories
Financial Assets
- Investments
- Trade receivables
- Cash and Bank balance
- Loans
- Other financial assets
Income tax assets (net)
Other current assets

5
5
6

4,260.78
121.59
29.80

9.98

7
8
12
14

1,304.63
14.17
5,730.97

9.98

9

1,713.94

-

7
10
11
8
12
13
14

350.11
24.76
0.11
1,038.78
40.61
104.61
1,063.05

61.63
-

4,335.97

61.63

10,066.94

71.61

1,713.94
411.74
24.76
0.11
1,038.78
40.61
104.61
1,063.05
4,397.60
10,138.55

15
16

4,605.00
82.62
4,687.62

52.57
52.57

4,605.00
135.19
4,740.19

4,605.00
56.57
4,661.57

20.42
20.42

17
18
19
20
21

12.35
721.83
49.40
783.58

19.04
19.04

12.35
721.83
68.44
802.62

28.97
14.01
605.99
37.84
686.81

9.13
9.13

17
22
18
19
23
21

3,812.71
48.99
141.75
592.29
4,595.74

-

2,884.16
172.47
174.72
15.34
572.98
3,819.67

-

10,066.94

71.61

3,812.71
48.99
141.75
592.29
4,595.74
10,138.55

4,605.00
76.99
4,681.99
28.97
14.01
605.99
46.97
695.94
2,884.16
172.47
174.72
15.34
572.98
3,819.67

9,168.05

29.55

9,197.60

Total current assets
Total assets
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity Share Capital
Other Equity
Non-current liabilities
Financial Liabilities
-Borrowings
-Other financial liabilities
Provisions
Deferred tax liabilities (net)
Other non-current liabilities
Total non-current liabilities
Current liabilities
Financial Liabilities
- Borrowings
- Trade Payables
- Other financial liabilities
Provisions
Current tax liabilities (net)
Other current liabilities
Total current liabilities
Total Liabilities
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44.4.b Effect of Ind AS adoption on the statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2017
Particulars
INCOME
Revenue from Operations (gross)
Other Income
Total Income
EXPENSES
Cost of Material Consumed
Changes in Inventories of finished goods & work-in-progress
Excise duty on sale of goods
Employee benefits expenses
Finance costs
Depreciation and amortisation expenses
Other expenses
Total expenses
Profit/(loss) before exceptional items and tax
Exceptional Items
Profit/(loss) before tax
Tax expense
Current Tax
MAT Credit entitlement
Deferred tax charges
Profit/(loss) for the year from continuing operations
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:Re-measurement gains (losses) on defined benefit plans
Income tax benefit
Net other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or loss
Total Comprehensive income for the year, net of tax

Notes No.

Previous GAAP

24
25

27,296.60
293.56
27,590.16

26
27

9,898.72
53.29
2,744.20
3,470.00
12.65
527.67
10,766.83
27,473.36

28
29
30
31

32

Effect of transition to
Ind AS

32.08
32.08

(46.08)
(9.99)
(56.07)

Ind AS
27,296.60
325.64
27,622.24

9,898.72
53.29
2,744.20
3,423.92
12.65
517.68
10,766.83
27,417.29

116.80

88.15

204.95

70.05
46.75

88.15

70.05
134.90

9.15
(9.15)
20.70
26.05

24.15
64.00

9.15
(9.15)
44.85
90.05

-

(46.08)
14.24
(31.84)

26.05

32.16

(46.08)
14.24
(31.84)
58.21

44.4.c Cash flow Statements
There were no significant reconciliation items between cash flows prepared under Indian GAAP and those prepared under Ind AS.
44.5

Investments in mutual funds:

Under Previous GAAP, investments in mutual funds were measured at cost or market value, whichever is lower. Under Ind AS, these investments have been
classified as “measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)”. Changes in fair value are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.
In respect of FVTPL investments, fair value adjustment under Ind AS has resulted in an increase in profit before tax under Ind AS by Rs. 32.08 Lakhs for the year
ended March 31, 2017.
44.6

Deferred Tax

In accordance with Ind AS 12, “Income Taxes”, the Company on transition to Ind AS has recognised deferred tax on temporary differences, based on Balance Sheet
approach. The tax impacts primarily represent deferred tax consequences arising out of Ind AS re-measurement changes.
44.7 Re-measurement of defined benefit plans
Under Ind AS, remeasurements i.e. actuarial gains and losses and the return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in the net interest expense on the net
defined benefit liability are recognised in other comprehensive income instead of profit or loss. Under the previous GAAP, these remeasurements were forming
part of the profit or loss for the year. As a result of this change, the profit for the year ended March 31, 2017 increased by Rs. 31.84 Lakhs. There is no impact on
the total equity as at March 31, 2017.
44.8 Retained Earnings
Retained earnings as at April 01, 2016 has been adjusted consequent to the above Ind AS transition adjustments.
44.9

Other Comprehensive income

Under Ind AS, all items of income and expense recognised during the year are included in the profit or loss for the year, unless Ind AS requires or permits otherwise.
Items that are not recognised in profit or loss but are shown in the statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income include re-measurement gains or
losses on defined benefit plans and fair value changes of equity investments.
The concept of other comprehensive Income did not exist under the Previous GAAP.
44.10 Impact of Excise Duty
Under the previous GAAP, revenue from sale of products was presented exclusive of excise duty. Under Ind AS, revenue from sale of goods is presented inclusive of
excise duty. The excise duty paid is presented on the face of the statement of profit and loss as part of expenses. This change has resulted in an increase in total
revenue and total expenses for the year ended 31 March 2017. There is no impact on the total equity.
44.11 Amortisation of Goodwill
In respect of goodwill amortisation, under Ind AS 109 amortisation of goodwill is not allowed. it has resulted in an increase in profit by Rs. 9.99 Lakhs for the year
ended March 31, 2017.
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Segment wise revenue, results and capital employed
a. As the Company’s business activity falls within a single primary business segment viz. “manufacturing and sale of auto components for
two wheelers and four wheelers”, hence, the company has only one primary reportable business segment.
b. Secondary segment: Geographical- No such reporting required as company is operating in India only.

46

Previous year figures
Previous GAAP figures have been regrouped/ reclassified wherever necessary to conform to the requirements prescribed under Division II of
Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Members of Rico Jinfei Wheels Limited
Report on the Financial Statements
1. We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Rico Jinfei Wheels Limited (‘the Company’),
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including
Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the
year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
2. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs (financial position), profit or loss (financial performance including
other comprehensive income), cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’)
specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor’s Responsibility
3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.
4. We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters
which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made
thereunder.
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5. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of
the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether these financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
6. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial controls relevant to the
Company’s preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made
by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
7. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on these financial statements.
Opinion
8. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give
a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India including Ind
AS specified under Section 133 of the Act, of the state of affairs (financial position) of the Company as at
March 31, 2018 and its profit (financial performance including other comprehensive income), its cash
flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.
Other Matter
9. The Company had prepared separate sets of statutory financial statements for the year ended March 31,
2017 and March 31, 2016 in accordance with Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the
Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (as amended) on which we issued
auditor’s reports to the shareholders of the Company dated May 25, 2017 and May 18, 2016. These
financial statements have been adjusted for the differences in the accounting principles adopted by the
Company on transition to Ind AS, which have also been audited by us. Our opinion is not modified in
respect of this matter.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
10. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (‘the Order’) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the Annexure A, a statement on
the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.
11. Further to our comments in Annexure A, as required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:
a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;
b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
it appears from our examination of those books;
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c) the financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account;
d) in our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with Ind AS specified under Section 133 of
the Act;
e) on the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record by the
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2018 from being appointed
as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act;
f) we have also audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting (IFCoFR) of the
Company as on March 31, 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date and our report dated May 23, 2018 as per Annexure B
expressed an unqualified opinion; and
g) with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:
i.

the company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position;

ii.

the company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses;

iii.

there were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the company; and

iv.

the disclosure requirements relating to holdings as well as dealings in specified bank notes were
applicable for the period from November 8, 2016 to December 30, 2016 which are not relevant
to these financial statements. Hence, reporting under this clause is not applicable.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

Ashish Gupta
Partner
Membership No.: 504662
Place: Gurugram
Date: May 23, 2018
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Annexure A
Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view on the financial
statements of the Company and taking into consideration the information and explanations given to us and
the books of account and other records examined by us in the normal course of audit, and to the best of
our knowledge and belief, we report that:
(i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of fixed assets.
(b) All fixed assets have not been physically verified by the management during the year, however,
there is a regular program of verification once in every three years, which, in ou r opinion, is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.
(c) The title deeds of all the immovable properties (which are included under the head ‘Property,
plant and equipment’) are held in the name of the Company.
(ii)

In our opinion, the management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable
intervals during the year and no material discrepancies between physical inventory and book
records were noticed on physical verification.

(iii)

The Company has not granted any loan, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships (LLPs) or other parties covered in the register maintained under section
189 of the Act. Accordingly, the provision of clause 3(iii)(a), 3(iii)(b) and 3(iii)(c) of the order
are not applicable.

(iv)

In our opinion, the Company has not entered into any transaction covered under section 185 and
186 of the Act. Accordingly, the provision of clause 3(iv) of the order are not applicable.

(v)

In our opinion, the Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73
to 76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended).
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable.

(vi)

The Central Government has not specified maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1)
of Section 148 of the Act, in respect of Company’s products. Accordingly, the provisions of
clause 3(vi) of the Order are not applicable.

(vii)(a) Undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax,
sales-tax, goods and services tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax,
cess and other material statutory dues, as applicable, have generally been regularly deposited
to the appropriate authorities, though there has been a slight delay in a few cases. Further, no
undisputed amounts payable in respect thereof were outstanding at the year-end for a period
of more than six months from the date they became payable.
(b) The are no dues in respect of income-tax, sales-tax, service-tax, duty of customs, duty of
excise, value added tax and goods and services tax, that have not been deposited with the
appropriate authorities on account of any dispute.
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(viii)

The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to any bank or financial
institution or government during the year. The Company did not have any loans or borrowings
from the government or any outstanding debentures during the year.

(ix)

The Company did not raise moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including
debt instruments). In our opinion, the term loans were applied for the purposes for which the loans
were obtained.

(x)

No fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or
reported during the period covered by our audit.

(xi)

Managerial remuneration has been paid and provided by the Company in accordance with the
requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 197 of the Act read with Schedule V to
the Act.

(xii)

In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, provisions of clause 3(xii) of
the Order are not applicable.

(xiii)

In our opinion all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188
of Act, where applicable, and the requisite details have been disclosed in the financial statements
etc., as required by the applicable Ind AS.

(xiv)

During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or fully or partly convertible debentures.

(xv)

Based on management representation, the Company has not entered into any non-cash
transactions with the directors or persons connected with them covered under Section 192 of the
Act.

(xvi)

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 001076N/N500013
Ashish Gupta
Partner
Membership No.: 504662
Place: Gurugram
Date: May 23, 2018
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Annexure B
Independent Auditor’s Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section
3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)
1. In conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of Rico Jinfei Wheels Limited (‘the Company’)
as at and for the year ended March 31, 2018, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial
reporting (‘IFCoFR’) of the Company as at that date.
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
2. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly
and efficient conduct of the Company’s business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Act.
Auditor’s Responsibility
3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's IFCoFR based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the ICAI and deemed to be prescribed
under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of IFCoFR, and the Guidance Note
issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
IFCoFR were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.
4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the IFCoFR
and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of IFCoFR includes obtaining an understanding of IFCoFR,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.
5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s IFCoFR.
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
6. A company's IFCoFR is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company's IFCoFR include those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
7. Because of the inherent limitations of IFCoFR, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the IFCoFR to future periods are subject to the risk that
the IFCoFR may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
Opinion
8. In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting and such controls were operating effectively as at March 31, 2018, based on internal control
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by ICAI.
For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 001076N/N500013
Ashish Gupta
Partner
Membership No.: 504662
Place: Gurugram
Date: May 23, 2018

